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1 Con February 8, 2023, all parties present, the following
transpired in open court within the presence of the

potential jury. This transcript contains only testimony

and closing argument. Bench conferences and any other

part of the record was not requested and is not

t r a n s c r i b e d h e r e i n . )

2

3

4

5

6

7 THE COURT: W e a r e n o w b a c k o n t h e r e c o r d . i t * s

the third day of trial. Washington county District Court

case Number CF-2021-304, state of Oklahoma versus Michael

E r i c N e l s o n .

8

9

1 0

1 1 Ms. Gullett, are you ready to proceed?

Yes, Judge.

Mr. Adams, are you ready?

1 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

1 3 T H E C O U R T :

1 4 MR. ADAMS: Ye s , J u d g e .

THE COURT: o k a y. M a d a m B a i l i f f , w i l l y o u

please direct the jurors to their p lace in the jury box.

(whereupon, following the evening recess,

t h e j u r o r s r e t u r n e d t o t h e c o u r t r o o m .

Thereafter, proceedings resumed as follows:)

THE COURT: Good morn ing , lad ies and gent lemen.

M s . G u l l e t t , s t a t e m a y c a l l i t s n e x t w i t n e s s .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , J u d g e .

A t t h i s t i m e , t h e s t a t e w o u l d c a l l M a r k R i t t e r .

(This is via video conference Teams app.)

THE COURT: Obv ious ly, Mr. R i t te r i s appear ing

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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by video conference, can all of the jurors see Mr. Ritter
without any problems?

(Ju ro r s i nd i ca t i ng . )

THE COURT: o k a y . A l l r i g h t . M r . R i t t e r , i f

you'd raise your r ight hand, please.

Do you swear the testimony you're about to give is

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so
help me God?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 THE WITNESS: Y e s .

1 0 THE COURT: T h a n k y o u , s i r .

M s . G u l l e t t —1 1

1 2 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: — y o u m a y i n q u i r e .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

THE COURT: J u s t — w a i t j u s t o n e m o m e n t .

Mr. Ritter, because you're on video conference, I

want you to listen carefully to the question, maybe pause

for asecond before you begin to answer, because our court

repor ter takes down everyth ing. There may be a l i t t le b i t

of bleedover where you're talking over one another, and

th a t m a k e s i t r e a l l y d i f fi c u l t . S o w e ' l l t r y t o t a k e c a r e

of that on our end as wel l , but i f you' l l just keep that

i n m ind , p lease .

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 THE WITNESS: Y e s , m a ' a m .

2 5 THE COURT: Thank you .
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1 M r . N e l s o n ?

2 Ican't remember the exact date, but Igot aphone

ca l l —and normal ly, l i ke Ihad sa id be fo re , I—i f i

see aphone call come over my phone and Idon't recognize
it , Idon' t answer i t and I let i t go to voicemai l , so i

didn't recognize the number, which was aTulsa number,

Ididn't answer it and it went to my voicemail.

Okay, was this approximately around September of

A .

3

4

5

6 s o

7

8 Q .

9 2 0 2 2 ?

1 0 Ye s , m a ' a m .

O k a y. A n d d o y o u r e c a l l k i n d o f t h e s u b s t a n c e o f

tha t vo icema i1 , wha t i t was abou t?

W e l l , I w a s - - l i t e r a l l y — I w a s l i t e r a l l y s h o c k e d

w h e n I l i s t e n e d t o i t b e c a u s e , fi r s t o f a l l , i d i d n ' t k n o w

who this guy was. And then when he became —when he

started, basically, harassing me and harassing my family

and say ing th ings tha t go t my a t ten t ion , you know, and so

I l i s t e n e d t o i t a g a i n , a n d I ' m g o i n g , y o u k n o w, w h o i s

t h i s g o o f b a l l . A n d I d i d n ' t — t h a t w a s b e f o r e i k n e w w h o

h e w a s . A n d t h e n , y o u k n o w, t h e r e s t i s p r e t t y

s e l f - e x p l a n a t o r y .

Okay.

I — h e w a s j u s t , b a s i c a l l y , c a l l i n g t o h a r a s s m e .

A .

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 I g u e s s .

Have you at any t ime provided Mr. Nelson wi th your2 5 Q .
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1 c o n t a c t i n f o r m a t i o n ?

2 No, ma 'am.A . Iwou ld have had no reason to .

As far as this voicemail goes —iknow that

you are testifying over video —have you and I—

3 Okay.Q .

4

5 R i g h t .

— c o m m u n i c a t e d a b o u t t h i s v o i c e m a i l ?

Other than the fact that Ihad the voicemail, that

you knew that Ihad the voicemail, no.

Well, Imean, recently, before testifying?
Y e a h . Y e s . Y e s . Y e s .

Okay. And were you able to send me acopy of that

A .

6 Q .

7 A .

8

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

v o i c e m a i l ?1 2

Ye s , m a ' a m .

And how did you do that? what medium did you use?

By my e-mail.

O k a y. A n d s o i f i w e r e t o p r e s e n t t h e c o u r t w i t h a

copy o f the vo icema i l , wou ld you be ab le to recogn ize i t ?

Yes, ma'am.

Okay.

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

Yo u r H o n o r , M r . R i t t e r s e n t m e a2 0 M S . G U L L E T T :

copy o f the vo icemai1.

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 1 .

I d o w n l o a d e d t h a t v o i c e m a i l t o2 1

2 2

THE COURT: Make sure the ju rors can hear you.

MS. GULLETT: I d o w n l o a d e d t h a t t o S t a t e ' s

2 3

2 4

E x h i b i t 1 1 . A t t h i s t i m e , I ' d m o v e t o a d m i t i t a n d2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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1 p u b l i s h i t f o r t h e j u r y.

THE COURT: M r . A d a m s ?2

3 l t * s a l i t t l e u n u s u a l .M R . A D A M S : B e c a u s e o f

I f she 's represent ing

it 's avoicemail, Ihave no objection to the introduction.

t h e c i r c u m s t a n c e s , I u n d e r s t a n d .4

5

6 THE COURT: O k a y, s o S t a t e ' s N u m b e r 11 s h a l l b e

a d m i t t e d .7

8 (By Ms. Gul let t) So, Mr. Rit ter, s ince you're not

here, I'm going to play —just so you know what we're

doing, I 'm p lay ing the voicemai l , okay?

Ye a h . I w o u l d p r e f e r n o t t o l i s t e n t o i t , b u t I

Q .

9

1 0

1 1 A .

w i l l .1 2

1 3 ( S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 11 p u b l i s h e d . )

( B y M s . G u l l e t t ) M r. R i t t e r, w e r e y o u a b l e t o h e a r

t h a t v o i c e m a i l ?

1 4 Q .

1 5

w e c a n ' t h e a r h i m n o w .1 6 T H E C O U R T :

S o r r y , s i r , I t h i n k y o u ' r e m u t e d .

I c o u l d n o t h e a r a n y o f i t .

I w a s j u s t g o i n g t o a s k y o u

1 7 M S . G U L L E T T :

I ' m s o r r y .

(By MS. Gul le t t ) Okay,

i f i t w a s t h e v o i c e m a i l t h a t y o u s e n t , b u t i f y o u c o u l d n ' t

h e a r i t , i g n o r e t h a t q u e s t i o n .

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

J u d g e , I ' d s t r i k e t h a t q u e s t i o n ,

w i t h t h e a d m i s s i o n o f t h e v o i c e m a i l i n S t a t e ' s

2 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

2 3

E x h i b i t 11 , t h e S t a t e w o u l d p a s s t h i s w i t n e s s .

THE COURT: o k a y. M r. A d a m s , y o u m a y i n q u i r e .

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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1 I g u e s s I n e e d t o c o m e a r o u n d .M R . A D A M S :

2 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

3 B Y M R . A D A M S :

4 Mr. R i t ter, can you see me?

Ye s , s i r .

Okay. NOW, are you friends with Chad Koehn?

Iknow chad Koehn as afinancial —one of my
fi n a n c i a l a d v i s o r s .

Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

7 A .

8

9 Okay. But the quest ion Iasked is, are you fr iendsQ .

w i t h h i m ?1 0

1 1 I m e a n , h e * s m y — I e n t r u s t m y fi n a n c i a l p o r t f o l i o

I w o u l d s a y , y e s , I -

r e l a t i o n s h i p , y e s , w e ' r e f r i e n d s .

When's the last t ime you spoke to h im?

we - - Imean, we speak week ly about the s tock

ma rke t , a b o u t , yo u kn o w, w h a t ' s g o i n g o n i n t h e fin a n c i a l

w o r l d .

A .

1 2 i n h i m . a s a — o n a b u s i n e s s

1 3

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6

1 7

D i d y o u t a l k a b o u t t h e f a c t t h a t t h i s t r i a l w a s

coming up and you were going to be awitness?

I k n e w t h a t , y e s .

Did you ta lk about the fac t that Mr. Koehn was

g o i n g t o a t t e n d t h e t r i a l ?

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; n o t

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3

r e l e v a n t .2 4

MR. ADAMS: B i a s e d .2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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1 T H E C O U R T: l u s t a m o m e n t , p l e a s e .

That 's not re levant as to who at tends th is t r ia l .2

3 I t ' s a p u b l i c t r i a l . S u s t a i n e d .

(By Mr. Adams) Now, what Mr. Nelson said in that

voicemail about you being friends with the same lawyer
involved in this lawsuit with Mr. Koehn, that's true,
i s n ' t i t ?

4 Q .

5

6

7

8 Who's the lawyer?

James Angel?

I k n o w M r. A n g e l .

Am Im i ssay ing —i t ' s Ange l?

Yes , you a re m iss ta t i ng h i s l as t name.

Okay.

Ye s , s i r .

And they 've represented you?

A .

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 I t ' s A n g e l .

And i t 's Kennedy Burke or Berkley Law Firm?

A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r , i t ' s n o t1 6 M S . g u l l e t t :

r e l e v a n t .1 7

THE COURT: J u s t a m o m e n t , M r . R i t t e r .

HOW is any of that re levant?

1 8

1 9

I ' m t r y i n g t o s h o w t h e b i a s i n h i s

t e s t i m o n y t h a t h e h a s r e l a t i o n s h i p s a n d h e ' s a s s o c i a t e d

They have the same lawyer and the same

2 0 M R . A D A M S :

2 1

w i t h M r . K o e h n .2 2

l a w s u i t —2 3

T h i s i s l a w s u i t t h a t i n v o l v e s t h e2 4 T H E C O U R T :

B lanchards, not Mr. Koehn.2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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1 I t ' s b i a s , m o t i v e t o l i e .

It's not relevant who his lawyer is

M R . A D A M S :

2 T H E C O U R T:

i n s o m e o t h e r a r e n a .

(By Mr. Adams) Now, sir, are you aware that in this

lawsuit that he called you up about, that Mr. Nelson is

having to represent himself?

3

4 Q .

5

6

7 Also not relevant, Judge.

I t e x p l a i n s w h y h e c a l l e d .

M S . G U L L E T T :

8 M R . A D A M S :

9 THE court: s u s t a i n e d .

1 0 THE WITNESS: H e c a l l e d t o h a r a s s m e .

1 1 THE COURT: J u s t a m o m e n t , s i r . W e ' v e h a d a n

o b j e c t i o n .1 2

He probably can't hear you, Ms. Gullett.

MS. GULLETT: S o r r y , J u d g e .

THE COURT: I f MS. Gu l le t t ob jec ts , then I 'm

going to make arul ing. So once you hear an objection, i f

you hear i t , i f you'd just stop speaking for amoment.

THE WITNESS: Y e s , m a ' a m .

THE COURT: o k a y , s u s t a i n e d .

Ask you r nex t ques t i on , p lease .

(By Mr. Adams) Are you aware that there was

a c t u a l l y a s u b p o e n a i s s u e d f o r y o u r t e s t i m o n y i n t h a t c a s e

- - t h a t f e d e r a l l a w s u i t i n K a n s a s , w h e r e M r. N e l s o n i s

counter -su ing Mr. Koehn?

I k n o w n o t h i n g a b o u t w h a t e l s e i s g o i n g o n . I w a s

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 A .

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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1 actually quite surprised Igot subpoenaed for this, to

b e g i n w i t h . I m e a n , I — i d o n ' t k n o w M i c h a e l N e l s o n . I

don't care to know him. And this is —I'm not on trial,
h e i s .

2

3

4

5 And “but you do know Mr. Koehn?

Yes , s i r, i do , as my financ ia l adv i so r.

Yeah. Is he s t i l l your finance adv isor?

Ye s , s i r , h e i s .

E v e n a f t e r —

Q .

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0 His company.

Even after he got suspended?

A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; m i s s t a t e s

N o o n e h a s t e s t i fi e d t h a t h e h a s

M S . G U L L E T T :

f a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e .1 3

been suspended.1 4

THE COURT: T h a t —1 5

1 6 I t h i n k M r . P i e r c y a d m i t t e d t h a t h eM R . A D A M S :

got suspended.1 7

THE COURT: H e d i d n o t . S u s t a i n e d .1 8

Ask your nex t ques t ion .

MR. ADAMS: N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

MS. GULLETT: N O , t h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

THE COURT: T h a n k y o u , M r . R i t t e r . I a p p r e c i a t e

y o u r t i m e a n d e f f o r t t r y i n g t o g e t o n v i d e o w i t h u s .

THE WITNESS: Thank you. Judge.

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 9 9

1 T h a n k y o u , s i r .M S . G U L L E T T :

2 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

3 S t a t e m y c a l l i t s n e x t w i t n e s s .

Yo u r H o n o r , a t t h i s t i m e t h e s t a t e

T H E C O U R T:

4 M S . G U L L E T T :

5 w o u l d c a l l D e t e c t i v e M i l e s L e w i s .

6 Sir, if you'd raise your right hand.

Swear the testimony you're about to give is the

truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help
me God?

T H E C O U R T:

7

8

9

1 0 THE WITNESS: I d o .

1 1 THE COURT: M r. L e w i s , y o u ' v e b e e n p r e s e n t

throughout the ent i re t r ia l , so I 'm not going to repeat

the instructions with respect to speaking into the mic and

c l e a r l y, e t c e t e r a , s o I k n o w y o u ' v e d o n e t h a t b e f o r e .

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Yo u m a y i n q u i r e .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

WHEREUPON, DETECTIVE WILLIAM MILES LEWIS, having been

d u l y s w o r n t o t e l l t h e t r u t h , t h e w h o l e t r u t h , a n d

n o t h i n g b u t t h e t r u t h , w a s e x a m i n e d a n d t e s t i fi e d a s

f o l 1 o w s :

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 DIRECT EXAMIMAI I01! I

2 3 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :

D e t e c t i v e L e w i s , w i l l y o u p l e a s e s t a t e

your name for record and spe l l your las t name for the

A l l r i g h t .2 4 Q .

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



2 0 0

1 r e c o r d .

2 D e t e c t i v e W i l l i a m M i l e s L e w i s .A . Last name spel led
3 L - E - W - I - S .

4 T h a n k y o u , s i r.

And, Detective Lewis, how are you employed?
I * m a d e t e c t i v e w i t h t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e

Q .

5

6 A .

7 D e p a r t m e n t .

8 And how long have you been employed with the

Bart lesvi l le Pol ice Department?

3ust under seven years.

Okay. And how long have you been adetective?

D u s t u n d e r t w o .

And you have the training and experience necessary

t o w o r k f o r t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e D e p a r t m e n t ?

Q .

9

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 A . Y e s .

And do you have the t ra in ing and exper ience

n e c e s s a r y t o b e a d e t e c t i v e ?

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8 A . Y e s .

Are you CLEET cer t ified?1 9 Q .

2 0 Y e s .A .

And do you have cont inuing educat ion?2 1 Q .

2 2 A . Y e s .

And are you up to date on your cont inuing2 3 Q .

e d u c a t i o n ?2 4

2 5 Y e s .A .
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2 0 1

1 A l l r i g h t .

M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ?

Q . So, s i r, are you fami l iar wi th a
2

3 Ye s , m a ' a m .

And are you familiar with Cynthia and Anthem

A .

4 Q .

5 B l a n c h a r d ?

6 Ye s , m a ' a m .

HOW did you come to be involved with this case?

Iwas assigned this case in December of '21, for

A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 r e fi n e m e n t .

1 0 Okay, what does that mean?

It means my boss told me to take another look at

this case and see if there's anything more to it.

A l l r igh t . So d id th is case get s ta r ted in the

d e t e c t i v e d i v i s i o n o r d i d i t s t a r t s o m e w h e r e e l s e ?

Q .

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4

I t s t a r t e d i n t h e p a t r o l d i v i s i o n .

A n d d o e s t h a t — h o w d o e s t h a t w o r k ?

1 5 A .

1 6 A l l r i g h t .Q .

C a n y o u e x p l a i n t o t h e j u r y h o w a c o m p l a i n t l i k e t h a t

wou ld wo rk a t t he Ba r t l esv i l l e Po l i ce Depa r tmen t?

S o i f t h e r e i s a c r i m i n a l c o m p l a i n t , g e n e r a l l y , o n e

w o u l d e i t h e r g o t o t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r c a l l t h e

po l i ce o r gene ra te an on l i ne repo r t t o j us t make t he

i n i t i a l r e p o r t .

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1

A n d i f i t ' s s o m e t h i n g t h a t r e q u i r e s

a d d i t i o n a l f o l l o w - u p , i t w i l l b e s i g n e d o u t t o a n

i n v e s t i g a t o r .

A l l r i g h t .

2 2

2 3

2 4

And is that what happened in th is case?2 5 Q .
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2 0 2

1 A . Y e s .

2 Okay.Q . So you got involved in December of *21?

3 A . Y e s .

4 A l l r i g h t . And what did you start doing in thisQ .

5 c a s e ?

6 I in terv iewed Ms. Blanchard, and I rev iewed the

information submitted from Ms. Blanchard from the original

report and Invest igator Morvant 's reports.

Okay. And did you do anything with that

in fo rmat ion as fa r as the d i s t r i c t a t to rney ' s o ffice i s

c o n c e r n e d ?

A .

7

8

9 Q .

1 0

1 1

I d i d .1 2 I — I r e v i e w e d i t , a n d I b e l i e v e d i f o u n d

p r o b a b l e c a u s e f o r s t a l k i n g a n d v i o l a t i o n s o f t h e c o m p u t e r

A .

1 3

C r i m e s A c t .1 4

And when you do that, when you find probable cause,

w h a t ' s y o u r n e x t s t e p a s a l a w e n f o r c e m e n t o f fi c e r ?

I fi l e d a n a f fi d a v i t w i t h t h e W a s h i n g t o n C o u n t y

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

D . A . * s o f fi c e .1 8

A l l r i g h t . A r e y o u a w a r e — I a s k e d a s i l l y1 9 Q .

q u e s t i o n .2 0

A re you aware i f cha rges were fi led aga ins t2 1

M r . N e l s o n ?2 2

2 3 I a m a w a r e .A .

Okay, wha t ' s you r unde rs tand ing as t o wha t

happened next in th is case?

2 4 Q .

2 5
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2 0 3

1 Mr. Nelson was arrested in New Jersey, ibelieve,A .

2 o n m y w a r r a n t .

3 And did Mr. Nelson eventually find his way back toQ .

O k l a h o m a ?4

5 A . Y e s .

6 And are you aware as to where he was being housedQ .

i n O k l a h o m a ?7

8 T h e Wa s h i n g t o n C o u n t y S h e r i f f ' s o f fi c e .

And did you -- while he was there, did you

have achance to ge t any ev iden t ia ry p roper t y f rom h im?

I s e i z e d h i s p h o n e s f r o m t h e p r o p e r t y r o o m .

And wi th se iz ing h is phones, what d id you do

A .

Okay.9 Q .

1 0

1 1 Y e s .A .

Okay.1 2 Q .

1 3 n e x t ?

I w r o t e a s e a r c h w a r r a n t f o r t h e c o n t e n t o f t h e1 4 A .

phones and then submi t ted those to OSBI for fur ther

a n a l y s i s .

1 5

1 6

I'm going to hand you what's marked asOkay.

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 2 .

1 7 Q .

1 8

That ' s my search war ran t ,

okay. So do you r ecogn i ze t ha t?

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 Y e s .A .

I s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e d e p i c t i o n o f a d o c u m e n t

tha t you 've seen be fo re?

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 Y e s .A .

A n d t h e n , w h a t i s t h a t ?2 5 Q .

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 0 4

1 That i s my search war ran t fo r M ichae l Ne lson 'sA .

2 phone.

3 And which phone —phones or phone is listed onQ .

t h e r e ?4

5 The iPhone in the gold case with an external

ba t te ry and an iPhone i n ab lack case w i th an ex te rna l

b a t t e r y .

A .

6

7

8 Yo u r H o n o r , i w o u l d m o v e t o a d m i tM S . G U L L E T T :

9 S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 2 a t t h i s t i m e .

1 0 MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE court: s t a t e ' s 1 2 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .1 1

(By MS. Gu l le t t ) Okay,

sent the phones off to OSBI?

Ye s , m a ' a m .

Did you, at any t ime, get anyth ing back f rom OSBI?

I d i d .

1 2 So you said that you thenQ .

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

Okay, what d id you receive back f rom OSBI?

The USB downloads of both phones.

A l l r i g h t . A n d w e ' v e t a l k e d a l i t t l e b i t a b o u t

t h a t t h r o u g h a n o t h e r w i t n e s s .

How big was that USB download?

T h e U S B d o w n l o a d f o r t h e i P h o n e 8 P l u s w a s o v e r

1 7 Q .

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2 A .

90,000 pages.

Okay.

2 3

And who had the p leasure of looking through2 4 Q .

t h a t ?2 5
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2 0 5

1 I d i d .A .

2 A l l r i g h t . Did you —during your search of the

phone data, did you locate anything of evidentiary value?

Q .

3

4 I d i d .A .

5 A l l r i g h t . What type of things did you locate?

Ilocated Google searches from that phone of the

Q .

6 A .

Blanchards, Blanchards' property in Bartlesville, and

tracking numbers for acertified letter to Cynthia
B l a n c h a r d .

7

8

9

1 0 Okay. okay. I 'm go ing to —

MS. GULLETT: C a n — m a y i a p p r o a c h ?

Q .

1 1

1 2 THE COURT: Y e s .

1 3 MS. GULLETT: Thank you, ludge.

(By Ms. Gullett) I'm going to hand you what's

m a r k e d a s s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 3 .

A l l r i g h t . S o h a v e y o u s e e n t h i s d o c u m e n t b e f o r e .

I h a v e .

1 4 Q .

1 5

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 And does this look l ike —can you look through all

of it and make sure that you recognize it.

I d o r e c o g n i z e i t .

Does i t look l ike atrue and accurate depict ion of

someth ing that you 've seen before?

Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A . Y e s .

2 4 So will you look at the bottom of the very

first page and tell me what that page number is.

okay.Q .

2 5
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2 0 6

1 5 2 0 6 8 .A .

2 Okay. And win you look at the very last page and
tell me what that page number is?

Q .

3

4 5 2 0 7 3 .A .

5 And are the pages in between, do they go in order?
C o r r e c t .

Q .

6 A .

7 Okay. And from your knowledge, what is thisQ .

8 d o c u m e n t ?

9 This is aportion of the PDF downloaded by OSBI

from Michael Nelson's phones.

A n d y o u ' v e a c t u a l l y l o o k e d a t t h i s b e f o r e ?

A .

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2 A . Y e s .

Okay.1 3 Q .

1 4 MS. GULLETT: Y o u r H o n o r , I m o v e t o a d m i t

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 1 3 .1 5

1 6 MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s N u m b e r 1 3 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .1 7

1 8 MS. GULLETT: H a n g o n .

THE WITNESS: Okay.

( B y M s . G u l l e t t ) M r. L e w i s — o r D e t e c t i v e L e w i s ,

I ' d l i k e f o r t o y o u t u r n t o p a g e 5 2 0 7 1 .

w i l l you p lease go to l i ne i t em 70017?

Are you there?

1 9

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t . Wi l l you p lease read nex t to 70017,2 5 Q .
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2 0 7

1 w h a t i t s a y s .

2 Anthem and Cynthia Blanchard fraud-Goog1e search.

And then nex t to tha t , what does tha t

A .

3 A l l r i g h t .Q .

large text box look l ike to you?

Av e r y l a r g e U R L .

Okay.

4

5 A .

6 And then the next box over, what is that?

That is adate and timestamp.

Q .

7 A .

8 Okay. And wha t i s t he da te?Q .

9 8 - 2 8 o f 2 0 2 1 .A .

1 0 A n d t h e t i m e ?Q .

1 1 IS 12:23 p.m. UTC.

A l l r i g h t ,

wil l you please tel l the jury what the next l ine i tem says

i t i s .

A .

1 2 G o d o w n o n e l i n e t o l i n e i t e m 7 0 0 1 8 .Q .

1 3

1 4

Anthem and Cynthia Blanchard fraud-Google search.

Okay.

A l s o a v e r y l a r g e U R L .

- - and then the nex t box ove r, wha t i s t ha t?

T h a t i s a d a t e a n d t i m e s t a m p ,

w h a t ' s t h e d a t e o n t h a t o n e ?

1 5 A .

A n d t h e n t h e b o x n e x t t o t h a t o n e - -1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

8 - 2 8 o f ' 2 1 .2 1 A .

Ti me?2 2 Q .

2 3 12:23 p.m. UTC.

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

I ' l l h a v e y o u t u r n t o t h e n e x t p a g e , w h i c h i s fi v e

A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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2 0 8

1 — 5 2 0 7 2 .

2 Are you there?

Ye s , m a ' a m .3 A .

4 A l l r i g h t .Q . Will you go to line item 70030 and tell

me what is in that box beside that number?5

6 Anthem Gold fraud-Google search.

T h e n e x t b o x o v e r i s w h a t ?

T h e U R L .

A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 A n d t h e n t h e n e x t b o x a f t e r t h a t ?

That's the date and timestamp?
A n d w h a t i s t h e d a t e ?

Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 8 - 2 8 o f ' 2 1 .A .

1 3 W h a t t i m e ?Q .

1 4 12:11:55 p.m. UTC.

Okay. Go one l ine down to 70031.

What is that search —or what is that for? Sorry.

Anthem Gold fraud-Google search.

The nex t box over, what i s tha t?

T h a t i s t h e U R L .

And what is the box following that?

The date and timestamp.

A n d w h a t i s t h a t d a t e ?

A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3 8 - 2 8 o f ' 2 1 .A .

2 4 w h a t i s t h a t t i m e ?Q .

2 5 12:11:54 p.m. UTC.A .
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2 0 9

1 T h a n k y o u , s i r .

Iask you to go to line item 70034.

NOW, it appears the box next to that, is it blank?
I t i s .

A l l r i g h t ,

we've been talking about aURL.

Y e s .

O k a y, w i l l y o u r e a d o f f t h a t U R L .

Q .

2

3

4 A .

5 Will you go to the —the box where

Do you see that one?

Q .

6

7 A .

8 Q .

9 HTTP://bartlesvi11eradio.com//caffiene/upload/

files/138HSC(2).mp3.

A l l r i g h t .

A .

1 0

1 1 A n d w i l l — t h e n e x t b o x o v e r , w h a t i sQ .

t h a t ?1 2

1 3 That is the date and timestamp,

w h a t i s t h e d a t e ?

A .

1 4 Q .

8 - 2 6 o f * 2 1 .1 5 A .

1 6 w h a t i s t h e t i m e ?Q .

1 7 1 1 : 5 3 : 1 1 a . m . U T C t i m e .A .

1 8 T h a n k y o u , s i r.

one more l ine down, the l ine number is 70035.

y o u p l e a s e r e a d t h e fi r s t — t h e s e c o n d b o x .

T h e B a r t l e s v i l l e R a d i o N e w s .

Q .

1 9 w i l l

2 0

2 1 A .

2 2 A n d t h e n n e x t t o t h a t i s w h a t ?Q .

2 3 T h e U R L .A .

And what's that URL appear to go to?

HTTP://m.bart lesvi11eradio.com/pages/news/

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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2 1 0

1 307022021/cybersecuritycompanypicksbartlesvi11easnewhome.

A n d t h e n t h e b o x n e x t t o i t ?

I t 's adate and t imestamp.

W h a t ' s t h e d a t e ?

2 Q .

3 A .

4 Q .

5 8 - 2 6 o f ' 2 1 .A .

6 W h a t ' s t h e t i m e ?Q .

7 1 1 : 5 2 : 5 9 a . m . U T C t i m e .A .

8 T h a n k y o u , s i r.

O n e m o r e l i n e d o w n .

Q .

9 7 0 0 3 6 , w h a t i s i n t h e b o x

d i r e c t l y n e x t t o t h e l i n e i t e m ?

It is aGoogle search, Herasoft Acquires Bui ld ing

1 0

1 1 A .

1 2 B a r t l e s v i l l e .

Okay. And then the box nex t to tha t , wha t does

that appear to be?

I t i s t he URL assoc ia ted w i th tha t Goog le sea rch .

Okay. And what i s the nex t box?

I t i s the da te and t imes tamp.

A n d w h a t i s t h e d a t e ?

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

8 - 2 6 o f ' 2 1 .1 9 A .

W h a t i s t h e t i m e ?2 0 Q .

2 1 1 1 : 5 2 : 4 9 a . m . U T C .A .

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

A n d t h e n t h e n e x t i t e m d o w n , l i n e i t e m 7 0 0 3 7 , w h a t

2 2 Q .

2 3

i s t h a t ?2 4

Heraso f t Acqu i res Bu i l d ing Bar t l esv i11 e -Goog le2 5 A .

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 1 1

1 s e a r c h .

2 And then the very nex t l ine or the box over?

I s t h e U R L .

Q .

3 A .

4 A n d t h e n t h e fi n a l b o x n e x t t o t h a t ?

Is the date and timestamp.

A n d w h a t i s t h e d a t e ?

Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

7 8 - 2 6 o f ' 2 1 .A .

8 A n d w h a t i s t h e t i m e ?

1 1 : 5 2 : 4 8 a . m . U T C t i m e .

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

When you testified about finding things on the

phone having to do with Bartlesville Radio, Cynthia and

Anthem Blanchard, and the Herasoft, is this what you were

r e f e r e n c i n g ?

Y e s .

Thank you, sir. You can put that up there.

A n d t h e n j u s t t o b e c l e a r , I d o n ' t k n o w t h a t I ' v e

asked anyone th i s ques t i on , where i s t he o ld —we 've been

t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e o l d c o u n t y c o u r t h o u s e o r H e r a s o f t . w e

talked about i t being over on Frank Phi l l ips, where is

t h a t l o c a t e d ? W h a t c i t y ?

B a r t l e s v i l l e .

And in what county?

Washington.

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , l u d g e . N o f u r t h e r

Q .

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5
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2 1 2

1 q u e s t i o n s .

2 Mr. Adams, you may cross-examine theT H E C O U R T :

3 w i t n e s s .

4 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

5 B Y M R . A D A M S :

6 A l l r i g h t . S i r, you knew that Michael Nelson had

s e n t t h e l e t t e r t o C y n t h i a b e c a u s e h e s e n t i t c e r t i fi e d

mail and he signed it, r ight?

I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r i f h e s i g n e d i t .

t h e y r e c e i v e d a c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r .

Q .

7

8

9 I d o k n o w t h a tA .

1 0

1 1 F r o m M i c h a e l N e l s o n ?Q .

1 2 A . Y e s .

Okay. so i t was no su rp r i se t ha t M ichae l Ne l son ' s1 3 Q .

t h e o n e t h a t s e n t i t ?1 4

1 5 C o r r e c t .A .

And now, would you agree wi th me, s i r, that a

c i t i z e n h a s t h e r i g h t t o r e p o r t s u s p e c t e d c r i m i n a l

b e h a v i o r t o a u t h o r i t i e s ?

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9 A . Y e s .

D id you i nves t i ga te t o see i f some o f t he t h i ngs

t h a t h e s a i d i n h i s l e t t e r a n d h i s o t h e r c o m m u n i c a t i o n s .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 w e r e t r u e ?

I d i d n o t h a v e r e a s o n a b l e s u s p i c i o n t h a t t h e

B l a n c h a r d s h a d c o m m i t t e d a c r i m e i n m y j u r i s d i c t i o n , s o

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 n o .
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2 1 3

1 Okay.

D i d y o u i n v e s t i g a t e i t ?

I — I c a n ' t i n v e s t i g a t e a c r i m e u n l e s s i h a v e

r e a s o n a b l e s u s p i c i o n t h a t a c r i m e h a s o c c u r r e d .

But you' re the one that just decided, Hey, Idon' t

have reasonable susp ic ion?

I f Ihave avict im come and report that they are

the victim of acrime committed by the Blanchards in this

j u r i sd i c t i on . I ' l l be happy t o i nves t i ga te t ha t , bu t I

d i d n ' t h a v e t h a t .

Did —you didn't have reasonable suspicion?Q .

2

3 A .

4

5 Q .

6

7 A .

8

9

1 0

Okay.1 1 so you ' re say ing you d idn ' t have reasonab le

suspicion that acr ime was committed in your jur isdict ion?

Q .

1 2

1 3 C o r r e c t .A .

He's claiming that they're defrauding people al l

o v e r t h e c o u n t r y a n d t h e w o r l d , r i g h t ?

D i d h e r e p o r t t h a t ?

Y e s . O n — i n —

1 4 Q .

1 5

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8 Mr. Adams, ask your ques t ion , bu tT H E C O U R T :

d o n ' t t e s t i f y .1 9

( B y M r. A d a m s ) D i d y o u fi n d — l o o k t h r o u g h t h a t

96,000 pages and see th ings where he reported th ings to

t h e F T C — t h e S E C a n d t h e C F T C ?

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

The scope of my warrant was to look for evidence in

r e f e r e n c e t o s t a l k i n g , s o w h e n I w a s g o i n g t h r o u g h t h a t

p h o n e , I w a s l o o k i n g f o r e v i d e n c e t o s u b s t a n t i a t e t h e

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5
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claims made by the Blanchards.

So you were t ry ing to substant ia te the c la ims made

by the Blanchards, but you weren't investigating to
determine if what he was saying was true?

T r u e .

Sir, do you think it 's afair crit icism to say that
you pu t b l inders on?

1

2 Q .

3

4

5 A .

6 Q .

7

8 A . N o .

9 NOW, that mp3 file that you read off that he got on

the Bartlesville website, that was acopy of the city

counsel meeting where they were approving giving the
B l a n c h a r d s t a x - p a y e r f u n d s , w a s n ' t i t ?

I d i d n o t v i e w i t .

DO you know the Blanchards?

Ihad not met them unt i l Igot assigned this case.

And who was it that asked you to look at this?

My boss.

And who is your boss?

At the time, it was sergeant Ward.

D o e s h e k n o w t h e B l a n c h a r d s ?

I d o n ' t k n o w .

Q .

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 MR. ADAMS: l u d g e , m a y I a p p r o a c h ?

2 3 THE COURT: Y e s .

(By Mr. Adams) s i r, I 'm hand ing you acoup le o f

pages. Do you recognize those two pages?

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 A . Y e s .

2 Okay. And is that from the same 96,000-plus-page

PDF that you got back from the OSBI regarding Mr. Nelson's

Q .

3

ce l l phone?4

5 Y e s , s i r .

Q. okay. Now, sir, unlike Ms. Gullett, my pages are

not sequential. Those pages in there are not sequential,

b u t c a n y o u — a n d b e f o r e I d o t h a t , s o t h a t c o m e s f r o m

that 96,000 pages and that shows e-mails incoming and

ou tgo ing?

A .

6

7

8

9

1 0

Okay.

Would you agree wi th that?

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3 I a g r e e .

Okay.

A .

1 4 Q .

3 u d g e , a t t h i s t i m e , I w o u l d m o v e t o

admit Defendant 's Exhib i t 3 , which is page 53846 and page

1 5 M R . A D A M S :

1 6

1 7 5 3 7 2 7 .

MS. GULLETT: N O o b j e c t i o n , J u d g e .

(By Mr. Adams) Now, s i r, a long th is —

THE COURT: I t s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

1 8

1 9 Q .

2 0

(By Mr. Adams) —a long the s ide —2 1 Q .

2 2 THE REPORTER: Hang on.

THE COURT: H o l d o n .2 3

(By Mr. Adams) Along th is s ide there are numbers.

I t l o o k s l i k e i t ' s s o m e k i n d o f s e q u e n t i a l n u m b e r t o k e e p

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 t r a c k . D o y o u s e e t h a t o n t h e l e f t s i d e —

Y e s , s i r .

— o f t h e c o l u m n ?

A n d i t * s b a s i c a l l y , l i k e — i t * s , l i k e , a

spreadsheet, like, an Excel spreadsheet, right?
Y e s .

2 A .

3 Q .

4

5

6 A .

7 A l l r i gh t , so i f i cou ld ge t you t o l ook on t he

fi r s t p a g e a t 1 7 4 4 6 . I t ' s t h e — i t ' s t h e f o u r t h o n e

down. Do you see that entry, sir?

Y e s , s i r .

A l l r i gh t . And i f you ' l l go ove r to the da te ,

w i l l y o u r e a d t h a t f o r u s .

I t i s 2 - 2 7 o f 2 0 1 9 .

Q .

8

9

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3 A .

Okay.1 4 And - - and tha t i s a - - w i l l you show us who

t h a t ' s f r o m a n d w h o t h a t ' s t o .

Q .

1 5

I t ' s f rom e-ma i l address m ichae l@anthemvau l t . com,

to paulaubert@mac.com, says Paul Aubert .

Okay. Or maybe pronounced Aubert?

P o s s i b l y.

O k a y . I s n ' t t h a t w h a t — i s n ' t t h a t h o w

Ms. Blanchard spel led Paul Aubert 's name when you were

s i t t i n g h e r e a n d s h e t e s t i fi e d ?

Probab l y.

O k a y. N o w, c a n y o u t e l l u s — e x p l a i n t o t h e

ladies and gent lemen of the jury what the UTC t ime is?

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 So i t *s s im i la r —wel l , i t i s the Greewich t ime.

It is five hours ahead of central Daylight Time and six
hours ahead of Central Standard Time,

okay. So if the phone is recording the time using
UTC or the call log is recording it or the e-mail log is

recording it using UTC, but when it's sent out via e-mail,
c o u l d t h a t c a u s e a d i f f e r e n c e i n t h e d a t e s i f i t w e r e

c l o s e t o m i d n i g h t ?

so if we're within five hours to midnight during

d a y l i g h t s a v i n g ' s t i m e , y e s ; s i x h o u r s i f i t ' s n o t

d a y l i g h t s a v i n g ' s t i m e , y e s .

O k a y. T h a t ' s j u s t — n o w, c a n y o u t e l l u s t h e —

over he re on the fa r r i gh t -hand s ide on tha t same en t ry,

c a n y o u t e l l u s w h a t t h e s u b j e c t o f t h a t i s ?

I t s a y s . F o r w a r d c a l l . . . r e m e m b e r t h i s ? T h e

m a r k e t m a n i p u l a t i o n i s w r o n g / i l l e g a l . Yo u h a d a g r e e d .

O k a y. S o t h a t i s —

N o w, t h e fi r s t e - m a i l a d d r e s s , t h e

m ichae l@an themvau l t . com, i t ' s a l so th i s M ichae l Ne l son ,

r i g h t ?

A .

2

3

4 Q .

5

6

7

8

9 A .

1 0

1 1

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 A . Y e s .

Now, so do you have any doubt that that is

the record ing f rom the OSBi ' s repor t when they d id the

phone dump, and it shows that Michael Nelson sent an

e -ma i l t o Pau l Aube r t , t he gene ra l counse l , a f t e r he was

Okay.2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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fired, saying —reminding him market manipulation is
wrong?

1

2

3 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . T h a t c a l l s

for him to speculate as to what was in the e-mail. He can

testify as to what is on this page.
THE COURT: s u s t a i n e d .

MR. ADAMS: o k a y .

(By Mr. Adams) Would you agree with me, sir, that

th is reflects that Michael Nelson, af ter he was fired,

sen t an e -ma i l t o t he gene ra l counse l , Pau l Aube r t , w i t h a

s u b j e c t t h a t s a i d , f o r w a r d c a l l , r e m e m b e r t h i s , t h e m a r k e t

manipulation is wrong/i l legal and you agreed? At least he

repo r ted i n t he sub jec t ma t te r t ha t t ha t was wha t t he

c o n t e n t o f t h e e - m a i l w a s .

4

5

6

7

8 Q .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

I c a n a g r e e t h a t t h a t ' s t h e s u b j e c t a n d i t ' s

f o r w a r d e d , s o I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t t h e c o n t e n t o f t h e e - m a i l

1 5 A .

1 6

i s n o r t h e c o n t e x t .1 7

O k a y , w e l l , i f y o u ' l l fl i p o v e r t o t h e n e x t p a g e

a n d l o o k a t a n e n t r y — a n d t h i s i s 1 6 2 7 9 . I t ' s t h e t h i r d

one down. Do you see that?

I d o .

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0

2 1 A .

N o w, w i l l y o u t e l l u s t h e d a t e o f t h a t .A l l r i g h t .

1 1 - 7 o f ' 1 8 .

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

And that 's a lso doing the UTC t ime?2 4 Q .

Y e s , s i r .2 5 A .
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1 A l l r i g h t . N o w, t h a t — i f y o u ' l l l o o k o v e r t h e r e ,

can you te l l who tha t ' s f rom?

It's from michael@anthemvault.com, Michael Nelson.

Okay. And who's that being sent to?

Paul@herc.one cynthia@herc.one Cynthia Blanchard,

okay. And is i t bl ind CC'd to any e-mail

Q .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

a d d r e s s e s ?7

8 Nelsonte lco@gmai1.com, tw ice.

T W i c e .

NOW, can you explain for us what the bl ind CC is or

—I'm saying —I'm saying blind CC, but can you explain
w h a t B C C i s ?

A .

9 Q .

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 I t ' s b l ind cour tesy copy,

so you send acourtesy copy, but the person that

receives i t doesn't see that you're sending i t?

t h a t h o w i t w o r k s ?

Iwould say —wel l , the other people wouldn ' t see

- o r , s o r r y , P a u l a n d C y n t h i a

would not see that nelsontelco@gmai1 would be receiving

that , but that 's what you ' re get t ing a t .

So you can send acopy to yourself and they

A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 i s n ' t

1 6

1 7 A .

t h a t t h e - - s o M i c h a e l1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 Okay.Q .

2 2 d o n ' t k n o w —

2 3 R i g h t .

— y o u ' r e g e t t i n g a c o p y ?

R i g h t .

A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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1 NOW, can you te l l us what the —so that was on

November the 7 th , tha t was l i ke th ree and aha l f mon ths

be fo re , r i gh t?

Yes , i n 2018 .

Y e a h .

Q .

2

3

4 A .

5 Q .

6 And the cal l —imean, can you tel l us what the

s u b j e c t o f t h a t e - m a i l w a s ?

I t s a y s c a l 1 .

Yeah, re: regarding cal l?

R i g h t .

And that was sent to Paul Aubert, but this one was

also sent to Cynthia Blanchard, right?

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; a s k e d a n d

a n s w e r e d . H e a n s w e r e d w h o i t w a s s e n t t o .

THE COURT: I b e l i e v e i t w a s , s o s u s t a i n e d .

(By Mr. Adams) will you agree, sir, maybe Imissed

it , but there’s no dispute that cynthia@herc.one is the

e-mail address for Cynthia Blanchard, is there?

No d ispu te .

NOW, and so tha t reflec ts tha t Michae l Ne lson sent

an e-mai l to Cynth ia Blanchard and to Paul Auber t on

November the 7th, regarding acall?

I w o u l d a s s u m e s o .

7

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q-

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .M R . A D A M S :

2 5 T h a n k y o u , s i r.
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1 THE COURT: MS. Gu11e t t , you may red i r ec t .

MS. GULLETT: Just briefly, Judge. Thank you.2

3 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N

4 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :

5 D e t e c t i v e L e w i s ?Q .

6 Ye s , m a ' a m .

HOW many po l i ce repor ts has Bar t l esv i l l e Po l i ce

Depar tment received f rom Michael Er ic Nelson?

A .

7 Q .

8

9 A . Z e r o .

1 0 H o w m a n y p o l i c e r e p o r t s h a s B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e

Department received concerning Cynthia Blanchard as a

suspect?

Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3 A . A s a s u s p e c t , z e r o .

How many po l i ce r epo r t s has t he Ba r t l esv i l l e Po l i ce

Department received as far as Anthem Blanchard is

concerned as asuspec t?

1 4 Q .

1 5

1 6

1 7 A . Z e r o .

And since we can't get away from his name, how many

pol ice reports has the Bart lesvi l le Pol ice Department

received concerning aChad Koehn as asuspect?

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0

2 1 A . Z e r o .

2 2 Based on those answers, why did you not look

f u r t h e r i n t o t h i s l i n e i t e m 1 7 4 4 6 t h a t s a y s t h e m a r k e t

m a n i p u l a t i o n i s w r o n g a n d i l l e g a l ?

I m e a n , i d i d n o t h a v e r e a s o n a b l e s u s p i c i o n t h a t

Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5 A .
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the Blanchards committed acrime in my jur isdict ion.

And then, as far as you're aware, it says this

e - m a i l w a s s e n t i n 2 0 1 9 .

t h i s e n t i r e t r i a l .

1

2 Q .

3 You were sitting here through

Do you believe that anyone involved in

this e-mail was living in Washington County at that time?

4

5

6 A . N o .

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

MS. GULLETT: N O f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE court: M r. A d a m s a n d M s . G u l l e t t , i f y o u

would come forward just amoment ,

(whereupon, abench conference was had outs ide the

hearing of the jury. This bench conference was not

a r e q u e s t e d p a r t o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t . )

7 Q .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 R E C R Q S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

1 5 B Y M R . A D A M S :

1 6 S i r , y o u d o n ' t h a v e , i n B a r t l e s v i l l e , j u r i s d i c t i o n

to i nves t i ga te f ede ra l money l aunde r i ng , do you?

Q .

1 7

1 8 A . N O .

Yo u d o n ' t h a v e j u r i s d i c t i o n t o i n v e s t i g a t e P o n z i

sch e me s t h a t sp a n mu l t i p l e s t a t e s a n d mu l t i p l e co u n t r i e s ,

do you?

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

N O , 1 d o n ' t .

MR. ADAMS: N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE COURT: Thank you , s i r. You may s tep down .

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 S t a t e — t h e s t a t e m y c a l l i t s n e x tT H E C O U R T :

2 w i t n e s s .

3 Y o u r H o n o r , w i t h a l l o f t h e

admissions and the witnesses, the state, at this time,
w o u l d r e s t .

M S . G U L L E T T :

4

5

6 THE COURT: O k a y. M r. A d a m s , t h e s t a t e h a s

r e s t e d .7

8 MR. ADAMS: Yes . Can we approach?

(whereupon, abench conference was had outs ide the

hearing of the jury. This bench conference was not

a r e q u e s t e d p a r t o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t . )

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, the State has

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 r e s t e d .

1 4 And, at this time, Mr. Adams, you may call your
fi r s t w i t n e s s .1 5

1 6 MR. ADAMS: Yo u r H o n o r , t h e d e f e n s e r e s t s .

THE COURT: o k a y . T h a n k y o u , s i r .

(Proceedings continued, but were not arequested

p a r t o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t i o n . )

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 Ms. Gu l le t t , you may g ive yourT H E c o u r t :

c l os ing a rgument .2 1

2 2 MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , l u d g e .

Al l r ight . Thank you, ladies and gent lemen, for

being here. My job is almost over and your job is about

to begin. You guys have gotten to sit through the

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 t e s t i m o n y y e s t e r d a y, t h e r e w a s a l o t o f b a c k a n d f o r t h

a b o u t a l o t o f d i f f e r e n t t h i n g s .

So this is my opportunity to get to talk to you

about these jury instructions, what Judge just read to

you, because it*s your first time seeing them,

is my opportunity to kind of get to point out acouple of

the ju ry ins t ruc t ions tha t I th ink a re impor tan t and tha t

Ithink need alittle extra consideration when you guys go
back to you r room to de l i be ra te .

So one of the very first ones I l ike to always

po in t ou t i s i ns t ruc t ion Number 2 , where we ta l ked abou t

—on the very first day, we talked about not checking

y o u r c o m m o n s e n s e a t t h e d o o r.

2

3

4

5 A n d t h i s

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 w e a l s o t a l k e d a b o u t

whether or not you have common sense, and nobody on this

jury raised their hand and said, Idon't have any common

Nobody on this jury raised their hand and said.

Nope —or said. Yeah, people have always accused me of

not having common sense.

1 4

1 5

1 6 s e n s e .

1 7

1 8 YOU guys have al l said that you

have common sense and that you can approach this case with1 9

2 0 c o m m o n s e n s e .

2 1 So he re ' s the j u ry i ns t ruc t i on tha t spec i fica l l y

says that you may make deductions and reach conclusions

that reason and common sense lead you to draw from the

fact that you find the defendant —establ ished by

test imony and ev idence the case.

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 Ta l k i n g a b o u t e v i d e n c e — a n d t h e r e ' s b e e n a l o t o f

t e s t i m o n y i n t h i s c a s e , a l s o , t h a t t h e r e ' s b e e n a l o t o f

d i f ferent th ings admi t ted in th is case. The State o f

Oklahoma has admitted up to 13 and Ibelieve the defendant

was up to three. So you have alot of things to look at.

And there 's a lot o f in format ion s i t t ing over there and a

lo t o f e -mai ls tha t d idn ' t ge t read to you. I 'd ask that

you guys go back there and you read them. Read everything

i n i t s e n t i r e t y . R e a d t h e d e f e n d a n t ' s e x h i b i t s .

The —one of the b ig ones I th ink is absolute ly

i m p o r t a n t i s t o t a k e a l o o k a t D e f e n d a n t ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r

2. Th is b ig packet r ight here, the protect ive order

petition that was applied for by Ms. Blanchard out of

Cal i forn ia. This was admit ted by the defendant . There 's

a lo t o f in format ion in here that is impor tant that you

now get to consider because this has come in.

I a s k t h a t y o u r e a d t h e e - m a i l s t h a t w e r e s e n t a s a

group e -ma i l i n Oc tober o f 2020 . We ta lked abou t two

d i f f e r e n t e - m a i l s t h a t w e r e s e n t t o — s h e t e s t i fi e d t o

m a y b e fi f t y - p l u s p e o p l e . T h a t i n c l u d e s i n d i v i d u a l s s u c h

as ed i tor@cryptonewsz.com, press-re lease@cryptonewsz.com,

kpender@sfchron ic le .com, ed i tors@thenextweb.com, and

suppo r t@tdamer i t r adene two rk . com, a re a l l on t h i s l a rge

e - m a i l c h a i n t h a t w a s s e n t o u t a b o u t t h e B l a n c h a r d s a n d

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

the i r company and what te r r ib le peop le they are and the2 5
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1 terrible, horrible things they're doing to this man right
h e r e .2

3 I 'd ask that you take alook at a l l that evidence,

b u t y o u c a n a l s o — I k n o w w e l i s t e n e d t o t h e v o i c e m a i l s

yesterday. You have the opportunity to ask to hear those

voicemails again. You only got to hear them once, if you

4

5

6

7 want, you go back in that room, you write out on apiece

of paper, the way that you ask aquestion, and say, we'd

like to hear the voicemails again.

8

9 we br ing you back in

here, you sit down in your chair, and we play the1 0

voicemails for you again.

There's always aquestion if you guys can have

them, keep them, listen to them, slow them down, play

t h e m , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t ,

hear them again.

I ' d p o i n t o u t t h a t i n t h o s e v o i c e m a i l s t h a t

MS. B lanchard rece ived in January o f 2021, there was ta lk

o f a b l o o d f e u d a c o u p l e o f t i m e s , a b o u t a b l o o d f e u d

between my children —that was referring to Mr. Nelson's

c h i l d r e n — a n d l y i n g , t h a t w i l l h a v e c o n t i n u e d t h e b l o o d

f e u d w i t h t h e B l a n c h a r d s — w i t h M s . C y n t h i a B l a n c h a r d ' s

children and her l ine, and it ' l l just keep going on and

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 You can ' t do tha t , bu t you can

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 o n .

T h e n t h e r e w a s t a l k a b o u t a p r i n c e o f t h e u n i t e d

A r a b E m i r a t e s , a n d I t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s a p r e t t y c o n c e r n i n g

2 4

2 5
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thing to catch up on because when you think about a

country like the UAE, that's alot of money sitting in a
c o u n t r y o v e r t h e r e ,

ap r ince f rom the UAE.

1

2

3 And then you th ink about someone l ike

Tha t i s ape rson w i th means ,

whenever someone is saying to you on the phone, ihave a

4 S o

5

6 connection, Iwas bunkmates with, I 'm buddies with this

person who is from aarguably very powerful country, who

had access to we would say as aprince, lots of money,

that would be scary,

v o i c e m a i 1 .

7

8

9 I w o u l d n ' t w a n t t o r e c e i v e t h a t

1 0

1 1 The interest ing thing about those voicemails,

though, is also that in them he talks about preventing him

from getting jobs, preventing him from businesses,

what there's not in there is no mention of going to the

FBI, the SEC.

rantings of an unstable person,

l a t c h e d o n t o s o m e i d e a t h a t h e t h i n k s i s t r u e a n d i s

fol lowing i t through to the end, and he can't let i t go.

I ' d a s k t h a t y o u l o o k a t t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e R a d i o

a r t i c le tha t comes ou t on Augus t 25 th , and then I ' d ask

t h a t y o u r e a d t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e E x a m i n e r a r t i c l e t h a t c o m e s

o u t o n A u g u s t 2 6 th , a n d p a y s p e c i a l a t t e n t i o n t o t h e f a c t

t h a t t h e E x a m i n e r a r t i c l e h i t s t h e w e b a t 6 a . m

e-mai l to the c i ty of Bar t lesv i l le is at 7:30 that morning

f r o m M r . N e l s o n .

1 2

1 3 B u t

1 4

1 5 what you have in those vo icemai ls are the

You have aperson who has1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 a n d t h e● I

2 4

2 5
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1 Because —we know that , one, because the e-mai l

2 says so, but two, we have the phone searches where he*s

looking at Bart lesvi l le, at Herasoft , and Cynthia and

A n t h e m B l a n c h a r d .

3

4 Mr. Nelson, who's never been to

Oklahoma, who's never been to Bartlesville, who should5

6 shouldn't really know about HeraSoft, the company wasn't

formed until he had no more dealings with this company,

w i th t hese peop le .

7

8 H e w o r k e d f o r a c o m p l e t e l y d i f f e r e n t

How does he know about Herasoft, acompany in9 c o m p a n y .

1 0 B a r t l e s v i l i e , O k l a h o m a ? B e c a u s e h e ' s o b s e s s e d w i t h t h e

B l a n c h a r d s . He ' s ang ry, he ' s obsessed , and he can ' t l e t1 1

1 2 i t g o .

1 3 I t ' s n o s u r p r i s e t o y o u — y o u ' v e h e a r d t h a t

cha rges were fi led i n December o f ' 21 i n th i s case .

Mr. Nelson was brought to Oklahoma on these charges, and

so t h i s case go t go ing . I t go t r o l l i ng , we s ta r t ed o f f

w i t h t h i s c r i m i n a l c a s e . S o w h a t h a p p e n s ?

September o f '22 , he reaches out to shareho lders

b e c a u s e h e c a n ' t l e t i t g o . S o t h e n h e c a l l s M r. P i e r c y

and he has aconversation with him about. Do you know who

y o u ' r e i n b u s i n e s s w i t h ? W e l l , l e t m e t e l l y o u . P o n z i

s c h e m e a r t i s t s . Te r r i b l e p e o p l e . T h e y g o t a l l t h i s s t u f f

g o i n g o n . T h a t ' s w h a t h e t e l l s y o u — t e l l s C r a i g P i e r c y.

Cra ig Piercy 's l ike, who are you and why are you

cal l ing me? How d id you get my in format ion? How do you

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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know my wife's name?

And then he cal ls Mark Ri t ter and leaves Mark a

vo i cema i l . And you hea rd tha t vo i cema i l because Mark

doesn't answer his phone for numbers he doesn't know. I

don't blame him. And so you hear him say in there —

starts off with, wel l , iwant to talk to you about someone

who —or about this company you're invested in. And then

he goes on to say. Well, Iknow all this information about

you. Iknow that you and your sister had this company

that you sold, and then, you know, Iwant to talk to you

man to man. And then your name keeps popping up in all of

these filings or all these things about underage girls.

Who says that stuff when you're calling someone to

warn them that they have inves ted in aPonz i scheme? who

says, "I have filed 16 subpoenas up and down the east

coast" when you're calling this person because you're a

whistle-blower? Because are trying to save them?

Iwant to talk to you about you get to consider

d i rec t and c i rcumstant ia l ev idence. D i rec t ev idence, l i ke

we said, is everything from that stand, everything that 's

been admitted, everything you've heard as far as

vo i cema i l s go .

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 YOU a l so ge t t o cons ide r c i r cums tan t i a l ev idence ,

w h i c h i s y o u g u y s p u t t i n g i n f e r e n c e — s o m e i n f e r e n c e s

together such as the phone was found on him.

2 4

2 5 I t w a s
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1 s e i z e d . It was taken to the Washington county -- or both

of them were taken to the Washington county Sheriff's

Department where this detective took it out of property,

then this detective sent it to OSBI, who then did their

2

3

4

m a g i c a l t e c h n o l o g y o n i t .5 G o t 9 6 , 0 0 0 p a g e s o f f o f i t .

And then from that 96,000 pages, we were able to locate6

the different searches on that phone.

YOU could put al l those steps together. 3ust

because someone can't stand there and say, Isaw

Mr. Nelson sending this e-mail, the phones were on him.

They ' r e unde r h i s e -ma i l add ress .

Arguably, a lot of the quest ions have been. Didn' t

you rece ive th i s e -ma i l f rom Mr. Ne lson? And the answers

h a v e b e e n . Ye s , y e s , I d i d . T h e r e ' s b e e n n o r e a l d e n i a l

t h a t t h e s e e - m a i l s , t h i s l e t t e r , t h e s e v o i c e m a i l s w e r e

M r . N e l s o n .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7 So tha t b r ings me to the e lements o f th i s c r ime,

we talked at the very beginning that this crime is an

i n t e r e s t i n g o n e . T h e O k l a h o m a l e g i s l a t u r e h a s c a r v e d o u t

a n i n t e r e s t i n g c r i m e , s o i w o u l d t a k e y o u t o J u r y

I n s t r u c t i o n N u m b e r 1 9 w h e r e i t t a l k s a b o u t t h e c r i m e i s

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

you use acompute r to v io la te an Ok lahoma s ta tu te .2 2

2 3 So you ' l l see here that we have the e lements of

fi r s t , s e c o n d , t h i r d , a n d f o u r t h . And when you look under

n u m b e r 4 , t h e r e a r e s e v e n m o r e e l e m e n t s l i s t e d .

2 4

2 5 T h a t ' s

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 3 1

because one through four are the e lements of us ing a

compu te r, one t h rough seven a re t he e lemen ts o f s ta l k i ng ,

b e c a u s e I h a v e a l l e g e d t h a t h e u s e d a c o m p u t e r t o s t a l k

Cyn th ia B lanchard .

S o e l e m e n t n u m b e r o n e o f t h e fi r s t s e c t i o n :

1

2

3

4

5

C o m m u n i c a t e d w i t h .6 Y o u k i n d o f h a v e t o l o o k a t e l e m e n t

number two to understand what communicated with means; a

compute r sys tem or ane twork . So whenever —we a11

t a l k e d a b o u t u n d e r s t a n d i n g c o m p u t e r s , a b a s i c

understanding. So communicated wi th means, when you get

on your phone and you go to Google, you are communicating

wi th Google because you ' re sending them some data, they ' re

send ing you da ta . So you ' re communica t ing back and fo r th

th rough acompu te r o r t h rough t ha t sys tem.

Second: A c o m p u t e r s y s t e m o r a n e t w o r k , a p h o n e , a

smar t phone , an iPhone 8P lus , an iPhone 7P lus , i s a

compu te r, we ca r r y t i n y compu te r s i n ou r pocke t s eve ry

day fo r t he pu rpose o f us ing the access . So i t has to do

w i th wha t d id he use th i s phone to do . A rguab ly, he used

the phone t o send an e -ma i l , mu l t i p l e e -ma i l s , sea rch f o r

t h e B l a n c h a r d s , s e a r c h f o r t h e i r t h r e e b u s i n e s s e s , s e a r c h

f o r B a r t l e s v i l l e , a l l s o r t s o f s t u f f l i k e t h a t .

And fourth: To d o t h e f o l l o w i n g t h i n g s . S o y o u

use th i s compu te r f o r t he pu rpose o f l ook ing f o r peop le t o

d o t h i s s t u f f .

7

8

9
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1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9
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1 so this is the elements for stalking, wi l l ful ly,

mal ic iously -- we have definit ions for both of those,

p re t t y se l f -exp lana to ry —repea ted ly —so tha t wou ld

mean everyth ing we have evidence of . That would be

e -ma i l s , vo i cema i l s , ce r t i fied le t te r, more e -ma i l s ,

e v e r y t h i n g t h a t ' s r e p e a t e d .

Harass ano ther pe rson , Ms . B lanchard . Love her.

H a t e h e r . s h e t a l k s a l o t . I t r i e d t o c u t h e r o f f

sometimes. That's still who we're talking about, though,
t h a t ' s M S . B l a n c h a r d .

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 in amanner that would cause areasonable person —

We talked on Monday about what i t means —reasonableness

means. You guys wouldn't be sitt ing on this jury i f you

weren't reasonable people, so that —you guys have to

come up wi th, would everything that Mr. Nelson have done

c a u s e a r e a s o n a b l e p e r s o n , i n t h i s c a s e , y o u r s e l v e s , t o

f e e l f r i g h t e n e d , i n t i m i d a t e d , t h r e a t e n e d , o r h a r a s s e d ?

Y o u d o n ' t h a v e t o f e e l a l l f o u r . Y o u c a n f e e l t h r e e o f

four. YOU can feel one of four. I 'd argue she said she

t e s t i fi e d t o a l l f o u r . A n d t h e n t h a t a c t u a l l y c a u s e s t h e

p e r s o n b e i n g h a r a s s e d t o f e e l f r i g h t e n e d , i n t i m i d a t e d ,

t h rea tened , o r ha rassed ,

so Cynth ia to ld you f rom tha t s tand tha t she has

been i n f ea r f r om app rox ima te l y 2019 , bu t espec ia l l y s i nce

the S ta te o f Ok lahoma 's had ju r i sd ic t ion in May o f 2020 .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5
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She told you that she doesn't know what this man is going
Every day, doesn't know what's going to happen

She doesn't know what she's going to wake up to

1

2 t o d o .

3 n e x t .

4 t o m o r r o w .

5 so you have to decide if you think that these --

t h i s b e h a v i o r h a s r i s e n t o t h e s e l e v e l s ,

you get to go back and you can look at that Defendant 's

E x h i b i t N u m b e r 2 .

6 A n d t h a t ' s w h e r e

7

8 Yo u c a n c o n s i d e r t h e i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s

9 i n t h e r e .

1 0 s p e c i fi c a l l y i n s i d e t h a t , i d r a w y o u r a t t e n t i o n

towards the end of Defendant 's Exhib i t Number 2.1 1 I d o n ' t

know the page numbers, but i t ' s k ind of towards the end.

T h e r e i s a r e f e r e n c e t o a c i v i l c a s e c a l l e d R e n z e l l o w v

Nelson, and you can read through this about what was

alleged to have happened in this case.

NOW, spoiler alert, the case was eventually sent

back because there was no adequate service on Mr. Nelson.

But there are allegations that Mr. Nelson had posted

defamatory statements onl ine about this man named Damian

Renzello in May of —let's see. May 16 of 2007, that they

had been in some sort of contract or business together,
t h a t t h e i n d i v i d u a l i n t h i s c i v i l c a s e t e s t i fi e d t h a t t h e

defendant had continued to post defamatory comments about

himself and his company on the internet, that he defamed

Mr. Nelson, defamed this man in the comments sect ion of an

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9
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o n l i n e p o p u l a r s c i e n c e a r t i c l e d e v o t e d t o t h i s m a n ' s

products, and on numerous other websites, including a

websi te ent i t led Ripoff Report ,

l o s t b u s i n e s s d u e t o h i s c o m m e n t s .

1

2

3 H e t e s t i fi e d t h a t h e h a d

4

5 This is not an accident what he is doing to the

Blanchards . Th is is o ld hat . He 's done i t be fore . And

y o u c a n l o o k a t a l l t h a t . Yo u c a n r e a d a l l a b o u t t h a t .

6

7

8 Ladies and gentlemen, Iwill get to respond one

more time because the state of Oklahoma has the burden, as
you know,

d o u b t ,

you again.

9

1 0 As we talked about, it 's beyond areasonable

So Iget to come up here one more t ime and ta lk to

But at the end of this, as you know, I'm going

to be asking that you find Mr. Nelson guilty and that you

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 assess apunishment appropriate with the behavior that he

has d isp layed .

Thank you.

1 5

1 6

1 7 Mr. Adams, you may give your closingT H E C O U R T :

1 8 a r g u m e n t .

1 9 T h e b r i l l i a n c e o f t h e U n i t e d S t a t e s

Consti tut ion is the separat ion of power,

government officials are always try ing to consol idate

p o w e r .

M R . A D A M S :

2 0 P o l i t i c i a n s a n d

2 1

2 2

2 3 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r , s t a t e s

f a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e . W e d i d n ' t t a l k a b o u t t h e2 4

2 5 g o v e r n m e n t , t h e C o n s t i t u t i o n .
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1 (Whereupon, asidebar conference ensued and was

recorded outside the hearing of the jury,

no t a reques ted pa r t o f t h i s t r ansc r i p t i on . )

M R . A D A M S :

2 T h i s w a s

3

4 The separation of the powers

protects us as citizens against the government,

to have three functions to have agovernment.

5 Yo u g o t

Yo u ' v e g o t

to have somebody make the law, you got to have somebody

decide when the law applies, and you got to have somebody

6

7

8

e n f o r c e t h e l a w .9 And our founding father's knew, through
a s t u d y o f h i s t o r y, t h a t a s — a s h u m a n s w e h a v e a1 0

1 1 tendency to become tyrannical. And if any one group got

too much of that power, they would have atendency to1 2

become t y rann ica l .1 3 So that 's why we have the three

branches of government and the separation of powers.
T h e b r i l l i a n c e o f t h e U n i t e d s t a t e s C o n s t i t u t i o n i s

1 4

1 5

1 6 that separation of power. But when it came to criminal

cases, in addit ion to our Bi l l of Rights -- which we wil l

be ta l k i ng abou t , espec ia l l y t he fi rs t one . i n add i t i on

t o t h e B i l l o f R i g h t s , t h e U n i t e d S t a t e s C o n s t i t u t i o n

gives us an addit ional power. I t gives us an addit ional

p ro tec t i on f r om the gove rnmen t , because the Cons t i t u t i on

is about restricting the power of the government to act
a g a i n s t i t s c i t i z e n s .

T h e a d d i t i o n a l p r o t e c t i o n i s f o u n d i n t h e s i x t h

Amendment of the Constitution, and that's the right to

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 trial by jury, and that's you. Yo u g u y s a r e t h e fi n d e r s

2 of fact, meaning that you guys determine what you believe

And, more specifical ly, you

determine whether the state of Oklahoma has proved every
single element beyond areasonable doubt.

3 t o b e t r u e o r n o t t r u e .

4

5 A n d i f t h e y

haven't, then your duty is to find Mr. Nelson not guilty.

Not because you have sympathy or empathy for Mr.
Nelson, we're not —you shouldn't make adecision because

6

7

8

9 you find him to be an annoying Yankee from New England.
It's because it protects us. It protects our system. And

who knows, you might need it one day.

Alot of times when you meet somebody in your life,

you come across somebody, you start asking yourself the

question of who's the bad guy in this situation, you know?

who's the bad guy in this situation? And you can't expect

people to act logically, but, you know, you can expect
them to act sensibly.

A n d a t t h e b e g i n n i n g , I j u s t w a n t — a s I s t a r t t o

go through the evidence and argue, Ijust want to remind
y o u w h a t t h e i n s t r u c t i o n s a r e .

I n s t r u c t i o n 5 g i v e s y o u t h e d e fi n i t i o n — a n d t h e s e

a re a l i t t l e ou t o f o rde r, bu t , hey —

It says evidence is the testimony received from the

witnesses under oath and stipulations by the attorneys and

exhib i ts admi t ted in to the ev idence. The exhib i ts .

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 including Defendant's Exhibit 1and Defendant's Exhibit 2,

and Defendant's Exhibit 3, are evidence, including all the

stuff they introduced. They're writings. The statements
that they wr i te in there are evidence. And Iwould —

2

3

4

5 they also give you the definition of direct evidence,
which is an exhibit such as aphotograph, which
d e m o n s t r a t e s t h e e x i s t e n c e o f a f a c t .

6

7 I t ' s p r o o f w h i c h

points immediately to aquestion at issue and which proves
the ex is tence o f a fac t , w i thout in fe rence.

8

9 T h a t ' s

1 0 d i r e c t .

1 1 And then you've got circumstantial evidence.

C i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e a l l o w s f o r r e a s o n a b l e i n f e r e n c e s .1 2

And so Ijust want to touch on this before Iget into
a r g u i n g w h a t i t h i n k a r e r e a s o n a b l e i n f e r e n c e s o r w h a t t h e

evidence may conclude.

1 3

1 4

1 5 And when you get so much into

a r g u i n g — i t ' s n o t a q u e s t i o n o f d o I b e l i e v e t h i s o r d o1 6

1 7 I b e l i e v e t h a t , t h a t ' s n o t t h e d u t y. The duty is has the

State of Oklahoma proved every element of the crime beyond1 8

1 9 a r e a s o n a b l e d o u b t .

Mr. Nelson has to prove nothing. And in doing
t h i s , w e ' l l t a l k a b o u t t h e i n s t r u c t i o n t h a t M s . G u l l e t t

l i kes . YOU a re pe rm i t ted to d raw such reasonab le

inferences from the testimony that you feel are justified,

considered with the aid of your knowledge which you each

possess in common with each other. This is the common

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 s e n s e .

2 we*n go back to the genesis of the whole thing.

GO back to the beginning of the whole thing,

controversy between Mr. Nelson and the Blanchards begin?

And you might have to jump around alitt le, but i t*s here.

You 've got Defendant 's Exh ib i t Number 1 .

first page, you've got —and i f you recal l , when

Ms. Blanchard sat up there, Iwent through each phone

number and said "is this your phone number?

your husband's phone number?

3 W h e n d i d t h e

4

5

6 O n t h e

7

8

9 I I I t I S t h i s

1 0 And she says, "Yes.

was go ing th rough th i s , and i t was abou t tha t t ime

I I I I A n d I

1 1

MS. Gul le t t s tood up and sa id ,

message that we can in t roduce i t .

1 2 I b e l i e v e t h e r e ' s a t e x t

wh ich sped th ings up.

But you'll see the blue part is from Mr. Nelson, the gray

I I

1 3 I I

1 4

pa r t i s f r om e i t he r Ms . B lancha rd o r Mr. -

And you've got to look at the number to see

w h o ' s s a y i n g w h a t , b u t i t ' s a l l i n t h e r e .

The fi r s t pa r t o f i t , he ' s t a l k i ng abou t , I asked

for her tokens to be able to use the platform, and was

told to go buy them, which did with my own money at 40

Now, for some reason, when we asked that,

that seems to be abig mystery or something she can't seem

I t ' s o n t h e e x h i b i t , 4 0 c e n t s e a c h , t h a t ' s

what he 's buy ing them fo r.

The 3-1-0 number, which is the Los Angeles number.

1 5 M r . o r M r s .

B l a n c h a r d .1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

c e n t s e a c h .2 1

2 2

t o r e c a l l .2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 which is hers, sends back, who told you that, question
mark? we l l , he r husband —

M S . G U L L E T T :

f a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e .

2

3 Objection, Your Honor, assumes
4 she never acknowledged that she

was actually on this test message chain.5 S h e , i n f a c t .

6 s a i d s h e d i d n ' t b e l i e v e s h e w a s .

7 Judge, I'm arguing evidence from theM R . A D A M S :

8 text message here.

9 You're arguing evidence, but I

believe —and maybe I'm wrong —that you referenced what

she said in re lat ionship to that .

T H E C O U R T:

1 0

1 1

1 2 I d o n ' t h a v e t o b e l i e v e w h a t s h eM R . A D A M S :

1 3 s a i d .

1 4 THE COURT: I unders tand tha t . Argue the —

argue t he exh ib i t , bu t no t wha t she sa i d i n r e f e rence t o

that exhibit because ibelieve Ms. Gullett 's right,

who to ld you tha t?

conversa t ion go ing be tween the th ree o f them. Then on

February the 24th, 2019 —

A n d b y t h e w a y, w h i l e w e ' r e h e r e , l e t m e — t h e r e ' s

1 5

1 6

1 7 I I I I T h a t w a s t h eM R . A D A M S :

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 an inst ruct ion on there judging the credib i l i ty o f the

w i t n e s s ' s t e s t i m o n y.2 2 You guys can believe as much or as

l i t t le or par t o f anybody 's wi tness test imony as i t is .

You don't have to take —you don't have accept their word

2 3

2 4

f o r i t .2 5 YOU guys a re the finders o f fac t . T h e r e ' s n o
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1 other 12 people in this world that can decide what you

believe and what you don't believe.2
A n d a s f a r a s t h e

credibility of the witness —and it gives you the things
including their ability to remember the

3

4
s t a t e m e n t s a s o n e

5 of the things to consider.
6 so it goes to them and it starts talking about how

Mr. Nelson's complaining, you know, that other people got
the tokens and he didn't, and it's aslap in the face and
a l l t h a t ,

who's the bad guy?

7

8

9 But then we get down to the relevant p a r t .

At the beginning, who's right in this
situation and who's wrong in this situation? where is the

1 0

1 1

1 2 three million dollars, exclamation mark, question,
question, question, question.1 3 Iknow it's not making

1 4 market, cause Ihave e-mails to Paul warning him that's
i l l e g a l .1 5 And aphone convo —which Ithink areasonable

explanation would be conversation —with Paul,

assured me that the company would not make market, which
i s i l l e g a l .

1 6 H e

1 7

1 8

1 9 Now, fast-forward to today, the detective gets
Defendant 's Exh ib i t Number 3 .

o n

2 0 t h e s t a n d . Yo u k n o w w h a t

there is? There is an e-mail —I've got it backwards —
on the second page, third line —from Michael to Paul

2 1

2 2

2 3 Aubert, which Ms. Blanchard testified was the general
counsel, and to Cynthia, which the testimony was on the
stand that she doesn't remember the e-mail.

2 4

2 5 S h e d o e s n ' t
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r e m e m b e r i t . S h e d o e s n ' t r e m e m b e r . B u t t h e n t h e r e ' s o n e1

po in t she s topped me and sa id , We11 , I th ink i t ' s November

No matter how much she read i t , she couldn' t

2

t h e 7 t h .3

r e m e m b e r i t .4

Now, Iwou ld suggest to you or maybe jus t ask the

question, have you ever seen one of those politicians get

in t rouble for something and they're up on —like,

test i fy ing in f ront o f acommit tee and every s ing le

q u e s t i o n t h e y a s k t h e m , i t ' s , l i k e , I d o n ' t r e c a l l , I

d o n ' t r e c a l l , I d o n ' t r e c a l l , I d o n ' t r e c a l l ? w h y i s

t h a t ?

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

We al l know, because you can dodge the quest ion i f

y o u j u s t s i t t h e r e a n d c o n t i n u e t o s a y t h a t I d o n ' t

r e c a l l , I d o n ' t r e c a l l , I d o n ' t r e c a l l . A n d a b i l i t y t o

recall is one of the issues that you're going to use to

d e c i d e t h e c r e d i b i l i t y o f t h e w i t n e s s . T h a t ' s w i t h i n t h e

j u r y i n s t r u c t i o n s . B u t y o u k n o w w h o d o e s r e c a l l o r w h o

c a n p r o v e i t — a n d t h i s i s d i r e c t e v i d e n c e — i t ' s d i r e c t

e v i d e n c e t h a t t h e r e w a s a n e - m a i l a n d a r e a s o n a b l e

i n f e r e n c e , s o i t ' s d i r e c t — b o t h d i r e c t a n d

c i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e i n h e r e t h a t M r . N e l s o n s e n t t h i s

e-mail to them because he was concerned about the illegal

a c t i v i t y t h a t t h e y w e r e e n g a g e d i n .

A n d t h e n t h i s c o n v e r s a t i o n g o e s t h r o u g h . A f t e r h e

says tha t , I had aphone convo w i th Pau l , he assu red me

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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the company would not make market . Mr. B lanchard, which I

t h i n k i t w a s — I t h i n k s h e s a i d i t w a s a Te x a s n u m b e r , I

d o n ' t k n o w. N o , L a s Ve g a s . S h e s a i d i t w a s a L a s Ve g a s

n u m b e r. I t h o u g h t i t w a s Te x a s , s h e s a i d i t w a s L a s

Vegas . Bu t 7 -0 -2 number,

c a l m t h e F d o w n o r y o u ' r e fi r e d r i g h t n o w. H e ' s

ask ing where 's the money. Are you mak ing marke t? Are you

d o i n g s o m e t h i n g i l l e g a l ? I d i s c u s s e d t h i s w i t h t h e

g e n e r a l c o u n s e l , c a l m t h e F d o w n o r y o u ' r e fi r e d r i g h t

n o w . I t ' s l i k e a t h r e a t . M F ' e r . B , a n d I w i l l m a k e s u r e

al l you have earned is g iven back to the company, you

b e t t e r s h a p e t h e — s h a p e u p r i g h t t h e F n o w. T h a t ' s a

fi n a n c i a l t h r e a t . I ' l l r u i n y o u i f y o u d o n ' t s h u t u p

a b o u t t h i s .

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

T O w h i c h M i c h a e l r e s p o n d s , t h a t ' s a t h r e a t . T h a t

a l l my years you th ink you can take f rom my fami l y. You

a r e g o i n g t o t a k e f r o m m y f a m i l y a f t e r a l l t h e y e a r s I ' v e

g iven you and everyth ing, you th ink you take f rom my

f a m i l y . T h a t ' s a t h r e a t . A n d i t w a s a t h r e a t .

Listen to the wording. The wording. Sometimes the

w a y p e o p l e s a y t h i n g s t e l l s y o u a l o t a b o u t t h e m .

A c c o r d i n g t o t h e c o m p a n y a c c o u n t a n t — n o t t h a t i t ' s t r u e ,

bu t accord ing to the company accoun tan t tha t he con t ro ls ,

a s C yn th i a sa i d , h e d o e s n ' t h a ve —h e d o e sn ' t h a ve p ro o f

or ev idence of what he 's saying because he doesn' t have

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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A lmost as i f to say, i f we had our books —

you know, i f he 's got them, they were hacked.

The compan ies had been way —cap i ta l —way

Yo u w o r k s o l i t t l e t h a t a d m i n t h o u g h t

t ha t you we re on asabba t i ca l , LOL .

N o w, t h i s i s o n t h e d a y h e g e t s fi r e d ,

t h e fi r s t e - m a i l t o A u b e r t a n d t h e m a r e o n — i s o n

o u r b o o k s .1

2

3

overpay ing you .4

5

Remember6

7

November the 7th, about, you know, when he's sending to

genera l counsel and when he 's sending to Cynth ia ,

so , yeah , I 'm su re fo r t he l as t f ew mon ths they

haven ' t been hav ing to do awho le l o t because he bas i ca l l y

to ld them, I 'm not down wi th what you guys are p lanning on

d o i n g .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

Yo u h a v e n ' t d o n e S f o r m o n t h s , l i t e r a l l y . A n d h i s

response: F e d e r a l c o u r t t h e n , o k a y ? F e d e r a l c o u r t , w h y

f e d e r a l c o u r t ? W h y n o t S t a t e c o u r t ? B e c a u s e i t ' s

s e c u r i t i e s f r a u d . I t ' s — i t ' s a f e d e r a l j u r i s d i c t i o n .

You ' re l ucky i f t he company doesn ' t t ake back —

a l l c a p s — h u n d r e d s o f t h o u s a n d s . L o o n y b i n f o r y o u .

I n s t a n t l y h e ' s a t t a c k i n g h i m . H e ' s a t t a c k i n g h i m i n a w a y

t h a t w o u l d t r y t o d i s c r e d i t h i m .

A c c o r d i n g t o t h e f e d e r a l c o u r t s , t h e y l o v e y o u

t h e r e , c a l m t h e F d o w n r i g h t n o w. Yo u a r e o n t h e

t h i n n e s t i c e e v e r .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

YOU should see who I 'm meeting with r ight now.2 5
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H e r e s p o n d s , Yo u A h o l e ? A n d t h e n h e c o r r e c t s i t

be l ow and he says , You ' r e —he says , you ' r e —

T h a t ' s D e f e n d a n t ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 1 . T h a t t e l l s

1

2

3

you r igh t there who 's the bad guy.

A n d t h e n I ' v e I s k i p p e d t h i s s e c t i o n , b u t I w a n t

to go —the last page. On the last page of Defendant's

E x h i b i t 1 , h e s a y s — h e s t a r t s t e l l i n g — h e c a l l s h i m

short bus. He star ts te l l ing h im to go ask for a job f rom

his brother. He says, "Because i f you try anything, these

texts already prove" —but do you see, instead of h i t t ing

the space bar, he h i t the Vand so prove and you are

c o n n e c t e d t o g e t h e r — " g u i l t y o f c o l l u s i o n .

W e l l , i t ' s t h a t t h i n g t h a t ' s , l i k e , i t a s s u m e s a

certain fact. When you say you —these text messages

p r o v e y o u g u i l t y o f c o l l u s i o n . T h e y m e a n t h a t — i f h e

w a s g u i l t y o f c o l l u s i o n , c o l l u d i n g w i t h w h o ? A n t h e m .

H e ' s b a s i c a l l y s a y i n g . I f y o u t u r n m e i n , y o u ' r e i n

t rouble, too. I ' l l use these text messages to get you.

And then when he comes back, that's when he says,

w h e r e ' s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s ? A n d t h e n A n t h e m

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 I I

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

responds and says . You ' r e fi red .

H e ' s t r y i n g t o b a c k h i m o f f .

He won' t shut up.

2 1

2 2 H e ' s t r y i n g t o s c a r e

h i m o f f .2 3

And then that is on February the 24th, depending on

whether you do the UTC or whatever.

2 4

O n t h e fi r s t p a g e o f2 5
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D e f e n d a n t ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 3 — w e l l , a c t u a l l y , b e f o r e

t h a t , l e t m e t i e t h i s o t h e r i n t o i t b e c a u s e i t ' s t h e r e ,

y o u j u s t g o t t o j u m p a r o u n d a l i t t l e b i t .

In Defendant ' s Exh ib i t Number 2 , you 've go t Pau l

A u b e r t ' s s p i n o n t h i s w h o l e t h i n g — o r n o t P a u l A u b e r t ,

y o u ' v e g o t M a r k H e a t w o l e w h o fi l e d a p o l i c e r e p o r t . S h e

a t tached a l l th is s tu f f to her reques t fo r res t ra in ing

o r d e r. A n d h e p u t s i n t h e r e - - h e r e w r i t e s t h e q u o t e t h a t

he received f rom Mr. Nelson on February the 24th of 2019.

A n d h e e x p l a i n s t h a t h e ' s — h e g e t s t h i s t e x t f r o m

Mr. Nelson, then he calls him, and then while he's talking

to Mr. Nelson, that Mr. Nelson is texting with

Mr. Blanchard, and then he's texting with Anthem, and that

d u r i n g t h a t c o n v e r s a t i o n h e g e t s fi r e d ,

w e l l , h e d i d n ' t g e t fi r e d b e c a u s e h e t h r e a t e n e d

anybody. They came back t r y ing to c la im tha t he

threatened somebody to cover the fact of why they really

fi r e d h i m .
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And then he comes back and he says —but he quotes

t h i s t e x t . H e y, M a r k , I s e n t y o u a b i r t h d a y t e x t t h o u g h I

I r e c e i v e d a n e - m a i l I w o u l d l i k e t o

1 9

2 0

d i d n ' t h e a r b a c k2 1 ● ● ●

discuss with you on the DL, down low, privately concerning

t h r e e m i l l i o n i n v e s t m e n t . T h i s i s M i c h a e l N e l s o n . A n d

2 2

2 3

t h e n h e s a y s , I j u s t l a n d e d a t L A X .

happened there when you do it.

2 4 I t e x p l a i n s w h a t

2 5
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T h e o t h e r f a s c i n a t i n g t h i n g i s w h e n y o u s t a r t

l o o k i n g a t t h i s a n d y o u s t a r t g o i n g t h r o u g h i t , t h e e - m a i l

t h a t s t a r t s o n p a g e 1 o f 6 , i t w a s f r o m A n t h e m t o a l l

t h e i r s h a r e h o l d e r s , w e l l , t h e e - m a i l t h a t ' s a t t a c h e d h e r e

for her was fo rwarded f rom Cynth ia B lanchard to

kgunte r@anthemvault.com.

fi l e . T h a n k y o u .

o t h e r s t u f f , t o o .

So Cyn th i a i s obv ious l y i nvo l ved , whe the r o r no t

s h e r e m e m b e r s i t o r w a n t s t o a d m i t b e c a u s e s h e d i d n ' t w a n t

t o a n s w e r q u e s t i o n s a b o u t i t . B u t , b a s i c a l l y — a n d t h e y

have i t down here, but when you star t reading down there,

t h e y c h a n g e i t . N o w, t h e y ' r e s a y i n g . O h , h e w a s fi r e d

because he th rea tened th i s guy. He th rea tened Mark .

A n d t h e n t h e y s t a r t - - t h e y ' r e s e n d i n g t h i s t o a l l

t h e s e s h a r e h o l d e r s . T h e y ' r e a t t a c k i n g h i m . I t s a y s ,

Mr. Nelson has apparent ly teamed up with Tom winger, a

f o r m e r d i s g r u n t l e d c o n t r a c t o r — e v e r y b o d y t h a t o b j e c t s t o

w h a t t h e y ' r e d o i n g , t h e y ' r e d i s g r u n t l e d - - c u r r e n t
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6 P l e a s e p r i n t t h i s , t o o , f o r t h e

P r i n t t h i s , t o o . S h e w a s p r i n t i n g

I t

I I7
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shareholder and former director whom the company has

s u c c e s s f u l l y f e n d e d o f f a g a i n s t a g g r e s s i v e , t h r e a t e n i n g

ac t ions by h im, who has had h i s own po l i ce repor t fi led

aga ins t h im in Ok lahoma fo r mak ing th rea ts aga ins t the

company back in 2017.

b e c a u s e t h e r e ' s a c o n n e c t i o n .

2 0

2 1

2 2
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She always runs them over here, not

She fi l es aga ins t To m

2 4

2 5
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Winger in Oklahoma in 2017.

record so that she can get up here and p lay l ike she 's a

v i c t i m .

1 S h e ' s t r y i n g t o b u i l d a

2

3

And then she says —she goes down towards the

bottom of this and says that Mr. Nelson is making false

claims of nefarious activi t ies being committed by the

companies and that Mr. Winger is trying to extort alarge

money (sic) supposed to fund alawsuit against the

company. To the i r l oca l au thor i t i es —and she 's ta l k ing

a b o u t fi l i n g w i t h l o c a l a u t h o r i t i e s , s h e e v e n a c c u s e s h i m

o f h a c k i n g a l l t h e —

She sends th i s ou t to a l l t hese peop le tha t he

k n o w s . T h e y s e n d t h i s o u t t o t h e i n v e s t o r s . N o w, t h i n k

a b o u t t h i s f o r a s e c o n d , w h y d o y o u t h i n k h e s e n d s t h e s e

l e t t e r s l a t e r o n a b o u t a l l t h e s e p e o p l e a t t a c k i n g h i m a n d

these death threats and stuff l ike that? These people

inves t th i s money in to th i s company, and then they sen t

out an e-mai l to these people and say. Hey, Michael Nelson

i s t h r e a t e n i n g o u r c o m p a n y, h e ' s t h r e a t e n i n g y o u r

i nves tmen t . And you hea rd P ie r cy say, l l o ve my money

m o r e t h a n I l o v e m y f r i e n d s .

H e ' s t u r n i n g — t h e y ' r e t u r n i n g t h e s e p e o p l e l o o s e

o n M r. N e l s o n . T h a t ' s w h y h e ' s c a l l i n g u p . T h a t ' s w h y h e

s e n d s t h e s e l e t t e r s l a t e r o n w h e n h e s e n d s t h e m c e r t i fi e d

l e t t e r and he r say ing , we ' ve sha red mea l s t oge the r.
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Yo u ' r e t h r e a t e n i n g m y f a m i l y. T h e s e t h r e a t s a g a i n s t m y

fam i l y have go t t o s top .

A n d j u s t s o I c a n m a k e t h i s p o i n t , y o u n e e d — s h e

cla ims that she d idn ' t know where he was at . But you know

t h e a d d r e s s t h a t s h e p u t s f o r h i m — a n d h e p u t s t h i s i n

t h a t l e t t e r t o h e r , t h a t c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r h e w r i t e s a b o u t

i t . Yo u p u t m y p a r e n t s ' a d d r e s s , m y e l d e r l y p a r e n t s '

a d d r e s s o n t h a t d o c u m e n t , p u b l i c l y fi l e d . T h e n t h e y s e n d

th is le t ter out to a l l these people saying th is guy 's

t h r e a t e n i n g o u r i n v e s t m e n t .

A n d t h e n h e ' s t a l k i n g i n t h e s e l e t t e r s a b o u t h o w

h e ' s g e t t i n g t h r e a t e n e d , h o w h i s l i f e ' s g e t t i n g

t h r e a t e n e d . A n d h e ' s t a l k i n g a b o u t — h e t a l k s a b o u t t h i s

s t u f f . A n d t h a t ' s e v i d e n c e , t o o . A n d i t ' s u p t o y o u g u y s

t o d e c i d e w h a t w e i g h t a n d c r e d i b i l i t y t o g i v e t h a t .

B u t t h a t ' s i n e v i d e n c e . I ' d a s k y o u n o t t o p u t

b l i nde rs on , because the i r en t i r e case res t s upon one

assumpt ion . The assumpt ion i s the B lanchards a re

s t r a i g h t - u p h o n e s t . B e c a u s e t h i s c a s e i s a n e n t i r e l y

d i f f e r e n t c a s e i f y o u c a n ' t — i f y o u c a n ' t m a k e t h a t

assump t i on t ha t t he B lancha rds a re s t r a i gh t -up hones t ,

wh i ch Iwou ld sugges t t o you t ha t you can ' t make tha t

assumption when you read Defendant 's Exhibi t Number 1.

When you read what Blanchards saying, "You' re

gui l ty of col lusion, too," which is why you get th is other
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e-mai l on the first page, the subject forward to cal l .

Remember this? The market manipulation is wrong/il legal

and you agreed? Back to the genera l counse l . Because

he 's be ing threatened wi th co l lus ion, so he 's , l ike . Hey,

I g o t p r o o f . I t o l d y o u g u y s n o t t o b e d o i n g t h i s . A n d

he sends i t back to the genera l counse l . Remember th is?

Then there's an interest ing —and you get the

B a r t l e s v i l l e p o l i c e r e p o r t . B a r t l e s v i l l e p o l i c e r e p o r t ' s

i n t h e r e , t o o . A n d y o u l o o k a t t h e d a t e a n d , l i k e I s a i d ,

these don ' t have numbers , 1w ish they had numbers . Bu t

i t ' s t o w a r d s t h e b a c k . Yo u ' l l s e e i t . F i l e s a p o l i c e

r e p o r t i n B a r t l e s v i l l e , j u s t l i k e w h e n s h e fi l e d t h e

pol ice report in Bart lesvi l le in 2017 against Tom winger

when they fought h im o ff .

Former member of the board of directors, he was a
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member o f t he boa rd o f d i rec to rs , t he peop le tha t a re

g r e a t l y a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h i s c o m p a n y.

1 6

Some of them get

i n d i c t e d , w h i c h w e ' l l t a l k a b o u t i n t h e o t h e r e v i d e n c e .

1 7
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Some of them get charged with Ponzi schemes, which we' l l

t a l k a b o u t i n t h e o t h e r e v i d e n c e t h a t ' s a l r e a d y a d m i t t e d .

S o m e o f t h e m l e a v e .

1 9
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2 1

F i l e d a p o l i c e r e p o r t o n M a r c h t h e 2 9 t h o f 2 0 1 9 .

we l l , she t o l d us t ha t she d i dn ' t move he re un t i l May o f

2020. Wel l , why does she keep coming back to

B a r t l e s v i l l e ? w h a t ' s t h i s g o t t o d o w i t h B a r t l e s v i l l e ?
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We11, she's f rom around here and he's not .

Then towards the back you get an e-mai l f rom

Cynth ia B lanchard . Cyn th ia@anthemvau1t .com. Seems to be

q u i t e a b i t m o r e i n v o l v e d t h a n w e w e r e a b l e t o g e t o u t o f

h e r h e r e i n t h i s c o u r t r o o m . A n d s h e ' s s e n d i n g i t t o B r e t t

Dunnaway and she 's send ing i t to Pau l , Pau l Auber t , the

g e n e r a l c o u n s e l . A n d i t s , R e : M i k e a n d To m . T h a n k y o u ,

B r e t t . I a p p r e c i a t e y o u t a k i n g t h e t i m e t o d o t h a t . W e

wi l l g ive you an update a f te r we meet the w i th the FBI

t o m o r r o w. T h a n k y o u , a g a i n . S e n t f r o m h e r i P h o n e .

Then An them ch imes i n the re , t oo . Bu t t hey go t

th is e-mai l f rom Bret t Dunnaway on March the 28th of 2019,

a t 4 :18 p .m . , and he says , Cyn th i a , I 'm send ing t h i s

e-ma i l to le t you know Iwas con tac ted by Tom winger the

w e e k o f M a r c h 1 1 t h . H e s t a t e d h e w a s a w a r e I w a s
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con tac ted by M ichae l Ne lson in re fe rence to our inves tment

w i th Anthem vau l t and Hercu les be ing ascam.

The same company he was complaining about the

p u m p - a n d - d u m p , a b o u t w h e r e ' s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s , I

You know, the th ing about

Cyn th ia and An them i s t hey don ' t —ne i t he r one o f t hem

A n d t h e s t a t e d i d n ' t w a n t — c h o s e
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know i t ' s no t mak ing market .2 0

2 1

w a n t t o t a l k a b o u t i t .2 2

no t t o p resen t An them e i t he r.

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . H e ' s

comment ing on the State 's ev idence.
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THE COURT: Come f o rwa rd , p l ease ,

(whereupon, as idebar conference ensued and was

r e c o r d e d o u t s i d e t h e h e a r i n g o f t h e j u r y. T h i s w a s

n o t a r e q u e s t e d p o r t i o n o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t i o n . )

THE COURT: B e f o r e M r. A d a m s c o n t i n u e s , I w o u l d

j u s t s i m p l y r e m i n d t h e j u r y o f t h e i n s t r u c t i o n t h a t y o u

h e a r d e a r l y o n , t h a t n o t h i n g I s a y i s e v i d e n c e a n d n o t h i n g

t h a t t h e a t t o r n e y s s a y i s e v i d e n c e , a n d i t i s y o u r j o b t o

we igh the ev idence tha t you heard in th i s case ,

so you may continue.
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S o w h i l e w e d o n ' t — d i d n ' t g e t t o

hear from Anthem in this case, we do hear from Anthem in

the ev idence because i t ' s a l ready been admi t ted .

T h a n k s , B r e t t , f o r p r i n t i n g o u t t h e s e t e x t s a n d

texts you forwarded me as wel l f rom Michael sent you.

H e s t a t e d t h a t - - o k a y.

The —the An them vau l t and Hercu les i s be ing ascam.

A n t h e m d o e s n ' t l i k e t o d i s c u s s t h i s i s s u e , a s y o u c a n t e l l

H e d o e s i t i n a v e r y t h r e a t e n i n g

way. Shu t the Fup you FM'e r, B , and I ' l l sue you and

y o u ' l l b e g u i l t y a n d y o u ' l l b e i n t r o u b l e , t o o .

C y n t h i a d o e s n ' t l i k e t o d i s c u s s i t e i t h e r ,

c o u r s e , s h e u s e s a d i f f e r e n t a p p r o a c h a n d d i f f e r e n t

s t r a t e g i e s ,

why, I don ' t know any o f t h i s t h i ng has eve r happened t o

1 1 M R . A D A M S :

1 2
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S O b a c k t o t h i s e - m a i l .1 6
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i n t h i s t es t message .1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 O f

2 3

H e r s i s , l i k e , i d o n ' t r e m e m b e r , I d o n ' t k n o w2 4
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1 m e .

2 If you have ever talked to ayoung child when they

come up to you and they say something that happened, l ike,

Hey, he bit me, and you say, We11, why did he do that? I

don' t know. No idea. okay. We11, do that - - wel l , what

were you doing to him right before he bit you? okay?

If you ever talk to ayoung guy, well , why did that

h a p p e n ? I d o n ' t k n o w . D i d y o u d o t h i s ? I d o n ' t k n o w . I

d o n ' t r e m e m b e r . T h a t ' s w h a t w e s a w . I d o n ' t k n o w w h i c h

is more childish, threatening somebody or just playing the

I d o n ' t r e c a l l , I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r " c a r d .

And then —you see , Cyn th ia , wha t she says in the

l e t t e r s o r P a u l A u b e r t s a y s i n t h e l e t t e r s , t h e y t r i e d t o

e x t o r t $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 i n o r d e r t o fi l e a l a w s u i t , b u t D u n n a w a y

doesn ' t t e l l t hem tha t i n t he e -ma i l . Wha t Dunnaway says

i s t ha t , He t hen p roceeded t o t e l l me t ha t t hey had a l l

the ev idence they needed, but needed $250,000 to cont inue.

H e ' s t r y i n g t o f u n d t h e l a w s u i t .

I v e r y q u i c k l y t o l d h i m t h a t l e g a l a c t i o n n e e d e d t o

b e t a k e n , w e h a v e o u r l e g a l t e a m . T h e n I r e c e i v e d a

s e r i e s o f e - m a i l s f r o m M i c h a e l w i t h a n u m b e r o f
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a l l e g a t i o n s , a n d I t o l d h i m t h a t I h a v e o u r o w n l e g a l2 2

2 3 t e a m .

wha t i s he t r y i ng to do?

t h i n g s a n d h e ' s t r y i n g t o r e p o r t i t .

He ' s t r y i ng t o go abou t2 4
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J u s t l i k e w i t h h e r c o m p l a i n t — 1 * 11 d i g r e s s f o r a

second —where she's saying —she's complaining in her

closing argument, oh, wel l , he's report ing this to a

r e p o r t e r a t C r y p t o c u r r e n c y, a n d , o h , h e ' s r e p o r t i n g t h i s

to the Techtron Compress Release.

1

2

3

4

5 Wel1, you know what, we

have aconst i tut ional r ight to f reedom of speech in th is

And they don ' t ge t to dec ide tha t wha t we ' re

6

7 c o u n t r y ,

s a y i n g i s n ' t t r u e , t h e r e f o r e , w e c a n ' t s a y i t .

n o t t h e fi n a l a r b i t e r s o f t h e t r u t h .

8 They* re

9

And i f you have any quest ion about whether or not

he is sincere about what he says, it 's right here in

Defendant 's Exhibi t 1. Here's aguy that stood up for the

r i g h t t h i n g , a n d l o o k w h e r e i t g o t h i m . H e g o t fi r e d . H e

g o t t h r o w n i n j a i l . H e ' s b e e n i n j a i l h e r e , h e ' s n e v e r

been to Oklahoma. And all of asudden, they're wanting to

lock him up because they don't like what he's got to say.

w e l l , o u r g o v e r n m e n t d o e s n ' t g e t t o d e c i d e w h a t i t

i s t h a t w e s a y. T h e y d o n ' t g e t t o d e c i d e w h a t t h e t r u t h

i s , w h a t t h e t r u t h i s n o t . i t ' s t h e fi r s t a m e n d m e n t t o

t h e U n i t e d S t a t e s ' C o n s t i t u t i o n , a l o n g w i t h f r e e d o m o f

association and freedom of press. And good men and women

d i e d f o r t h a t r i g h t . A n d i t ' s i r o n i c t h a t t h e s t a t e w o u l d

s t a n d u p h e r e i n t h e i r fi r s t c l o s i n g a r g u m e n t a n d t a l k

about the th rea ts f rom some fo re ign coun t ry, because

t h a t ' s w h a t w e ' l l b e c o m e i f w e e v e r l e t o u r —
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1 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: Mr. Adams, come forward p lease.

(Whereupon, asidebar conference ensued and was

recorded outs ide the hear ing of the jury. This

w a s n o t a r e q u e s t e d p a r t o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t i o n . )

MR. ADAMS: s o y o u g e t d o w n h e r e t o t h i s p a r t o f

the ev idence . And you*11 see the l as t two l i nes where he

says, Paul and Anthem —this is Dunnaway —Iam sending

you —th is e-mai l to you due to the amount we have

i n v e s t e d i n t h i s p r o j e c t a n d t h e a c t i o n s o f t h e s e t w o

i n d i v i d u a l s .
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I t h i n k t h a t ' s — t h e y h a v e — h e h a s a i n v e s t m e n t

— o r i n v e s t e d o r v e s t e d i n t e r e s t .
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They need to be s topped . Iam concerned abou t the

o v e r a l l s t a t e o f m i n d o f t h e m . I t r u l y b e l i e v e t h e

company needs to pu t as top to th i s so i t does no t impac t

our investment and the fu ture o f the company.

I t s o u n d s l i k e a g u y t h a t v a l u e s m o n e y o v e r r i g h t

a n d w r o n g . S o u n d s l i k e a g u y t h a t ' s n o t w i l l i n g t o t a k e a

stand no matter what the consequences are.

when Iwas in the Navy, the re was an admi ra l tha t

was famous fo r say ing , "Damn the to rpedoes; fu l l speed

I f I ' d h a v e p a i d a t t e n t i o n , I ' d b e a b l e t o t e l l

y o u t h e g u y ' s n a m e , w e l l , t h a t ' s M r . N e l s o n o v e r h e r e . I

t h i n k t h e w o r l d w o u l d b e a b e t t e r p l a c e i f p e o p l e h a d a
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l i t t l e b i t m o r e c o u r a g e i n t h e i r c o n v i c t i o n s .

Y O U c a n t e l l t h i s s t o r y f r o m t h e e v i d e n c e , t h e

t h r e e e x h i b i t s t h a t w e i n t r o d u c e d . B u t i f y o u ' r e n o t

conv inced, you can sk ip over to the ev idence the Sta te

i n t r o d u c e d a n d i t ' l l t e l l t h e s t o r y , t o o . H e s e n d s t h i s

e - m a i l . D e f e n d a n t ' s E x h i b i t 1 , o n O c t o b e r t h e 2 1 s t o f

2 0 2 0 . H e s a i d , I w a n t t o t e l l e v e r y b o d y i n t h i s c o m p a n y I

have never th rea tened anyone . You-a l l shou ld be aware

that Anthem Hayek Blanchard and his sidekick, Logan Ryan

Golema, have been defaming me al l over Twit ter and other

f o r u m s .

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

T h e y ' r e t r y i n g t o d i s c r e d i t h i m s o p e o p l e w o n ' t

be l ieve h im about them invo lved in th is pump-and-dump

We' l l ge t to the Ponz i schemes f rom the

fo rmer board members , because i t ' s i n the ev idence , too .

I ' l l b e s e t t i n g u p a Tw i t t e r a c c o u n t t o d a y t o

respond to th is BS —

He didn ' t say BS, but , you know.

—spewed fo r th us ing company resources .

They a t tack h im; he 's responded.

Ihave commun ica ted the th rea ts lev ied by An them

Blanchard regarding Mark Heatwole, whose name appears at

leas t 6 ,000 t imes on Tw i t te r as be ing murdered .

I d o n ' t h a v e a n y i d e a w h a t t h a t ' s a b o u t .

I have neve r murde red anyone , I ' ve neve r t h rea tened
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t h e s a m e . A c r i m i n a l d e n u n c i a t i o n i n t h e c o u n t r y o f S p a i n1

h a s b e e n fi l e d .2

H e w a s l i v i n g i n S p a i n w i t h h i s b r o t h e r . T h i s i s

—you got the e-mai l w i th the prompt on the —Ican ' t

remember the lady that came from the OSBI.

A n d fi l e d i n t h e U . S . Te r r i t o r y o f P u e r t o R i c o ,

where Cyn th ia and An them had fi l l ed ou t t h i s t ax

dea l tha t she ta lked about and exp la ined to you, she had

to be t he re f o r s i x mon ths and t h ree days , bu t d i dn ' t

r ea l l y s tay t he re much .

A n d , I ' m s o r r y, b u t , l o o k , t h e o n l y t i m e t h a t a

hund red thousand do l l a r s i s no t a lo t o f money i s when

i t ' s s o m e b o d y e l s e ' s m o n e y, i f i t ' s y o u r m o n e y, a h u n d r e d

g r a n d i s a l o t o f m o n e y. $ 1 9 , 0 0 0 i s a l o t o f m o n e y. A n d

i f a h u n d r e d t h o u s a n d d o l l a r s i s n o t a l o t o f m o n e y t o

people like you, then why are you getting sued for a

h u n d r e d g r a n d ? i f i t a i n ' t a l o t o f m o n e y, i f $ 1 9 , 0 0 0 ' s a

sma l l - - j us t a t i ny amoun t o f money, t hen why a re you

g e t t i n g s u e d f o r i t ?

A n d i s i t r e l e v a n t t o n o t i f y a c i t y t h a t m i g h t n o t

know th i s s tu f f . Hey, you j us t gave tax -paye r money to

t h e s e p e o p l e t h a t a r e g e t t i n g s u e d — t h a t a r e g e t t i n g

sued fo r ahundred g rand? Are these the peop le you ough t

t o be en t rus t i ng t ax -paye r money w i t h? You j us t gave

tax-payer money to peop le that are be ing sued for 19,000.
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1 And the reason that they're being sued -- it 's American

You run up over ahundred thousand do l la rs on a

c r e d i t c a r d i n a m o n t h ?

2 E x p r e s s .

3

H e t a l k s a b o u t t h i s .4 P a r t o f t h e r e a s o n t h a t h e ' s

in te res ted in th is —in the Sta te 's Exh ib i t 1 , FYI , my

ownership in all these companies is approximately -- is

1 .7 mi l l ion shares o f s tock —probab ly great ly d i lu ted a t

this point —which should tel l you something about the

i n v e s t m e n t .

5
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9 Th is guy has every reason in the wor ld to

want the company to succeed because, i f i t succeeds, he1 0

m a k e s a f o r t u n e .1 1 B u t h e k n o w s t h a t i t ' s n o t g o i n g t o

succeed and he knows that they're running ascam and he's

t r y i n g t o t e l l o t h e r p e o p l e t o b e w a r e ,

t ruth wi l l come out eventual ly.

Blanchard any more of your time or money.

1 2

1 3 And he says. The

Be wary of giving Anthem1 4

1 5

1 6 Then the second one he talks about the same thing.

This is the one that he sent two days later.

I real ly appreciate the support and understanding I

and my fami ly have been through for the last one and a

h a l f y e a r s o f h e l l . A n t h e m B l a n c h a r d , h i s w i f e , a n d t h e i r

f a m i l y a s s o c i a t e s h a v e r e a l l y p u t t h e f e a r i n u s f o r o u r

phys i ca l sa fe t y. They have con t i nued to hun t us down , no

m a t t e r w h a t w e d o w i t h o u r l i v e s .

And then he —he jus t goes th rough and he ta lks

about i t . He just lays i t out . And then he gives them.
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l i ke awhis t le -b lower —i f anyone wants to pro tec t any

investment, you may please use the following links, Nevada

I n v e s t i g a t i o n s , t h e y l i k e t o t a k e p h o n e c a l l s a n d h a v e y o u

send them documents. Nevada has apile of complaints and

even two dedicated investigators to work on the case.

H e * s r e f e r r i n g o t h e r p e o p l e t o a u t h o r i t i e s . N o

wonder tha t B re t t Dunnaway, w i th a l l h i s money inves ted ,

to ld the An thems (s i c ) they need to be s topped , tha t he

b e l i e f s i t * s g o i n g t o i m p a c t o u r i n v e s t m e n t , b e c a u s e n o t

o n l y i s t h i s g u y s p e a k i n g o u t , t h i s g u y i s e n c o u r a g i n g

o ther peop le to speak ou t .

T h e n t h i s l e t t e r t h a t h e s e n t c e r t i fi e d m a i l ,

t h e r e ' s n o t h i n g n e f a r i o u s a b o u t t h i s l e t t e r . H e p u t h i s

name on it and wanted to make sure that he could prove

t h a t s h e g o t i t .

Mrs. Cynthia Diane French Blanchard and Mr. Chad

K o e h n . I t h i n k t h a t ' s k i n d o f i n t e r e s t i n g . H e r e a c h e s

out to Cynthia more than he reaches out to Anthem because

I t h i n k t h a t h e f e e l s l i k e t h a t C y n t h i a m i g h t — l i k e , h e

m i g h t b e a b l e t o r e a c h h e r , I t h i n k — y o u k n o w. B u t

t ha t ' s you r own t h i ng t ha t you can t h i nk abou t .

Mr. Chad Koehn, the death threats f rom you and/or

your associates must end.

Just l i ke when he was ta lk ing about go ing th rough a

y e a r a n d a h a l f o f h e l l a n d t h e y p u t h i s p a r e n t s ' s t u f f o n
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the internet, you guys got to stop this.

Jus t l i ke tha t le t te r tha t they pu t in there tha t

he sent out to a l l thei r investors of he 's threatening

you r i nves tmen t .

The death threats have got to end. I 'm afraid that

y o u w i l l f o l l o w t h r o u g h o r y o u r c r i m i n a l a s s o c i a t e s w i l l

f o l l o w t h r o u g h o n t h e t h r e a t s t o e n d m y l i f e a n d t h a t o f

m y f a m i l y m e m b e r s . N o t e r e l a t e d t o t h e t h r e a t r e l a t e d t o

Da le Tak io 's case invo lv ing S imon Proper ty where the lead

w h i s t l e - b l o w e r w a s f o u n d d e a d .
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Do you remember when Ikept t ry ing to ask her about

Dale Takio and we got th is whole dancing around th ing?

A n d I t h i n k t h a t ' s t h e o n e i e v e n h a d t o p u l l t h e w e b s i t e

H e p u t s i t i n h i s l e t t e r ,

p u t a l i t t l e c o n t e x t i n t o i t .

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h .
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A n d I ' m j u s t t r y i n g t o

Here 's aguy you guys a re

He goes through and he ta lks in th is

Having your assoc iates contact me and others

p o i n t i n g o u t t h i s a r t i c l e s a y i n g a w h i s t l e - b l o w e r w a s

f o u n d d e a d i n e s t a t e b o a r d i n g , y o u r p a r e n t s ' f a m i l y, a n d

we know where your family is.

f a m i l y i s b e c a u s e w e p u t i t i n a p u b l i c fi l i n g i n

Ca l i f o rn ia when you knew tha t he d idn ' t l i ve in Rhode

He had aVegas

And i f you have any doubt about that , you can

look on the second page —or you can look on the page

1 4 u p o n .

1 5

1 6

l e t t e r :1 7

1 8

1 9

Well, we know where your2 0

2 1

2 2

i s land , you pu t h i s pa ren ts ' home address ,

a d d r e s s .
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here where Mark Heatwole —when he files his police

repor t , he g ives the address for Michae l Ne lson as 4952

South Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 250, Las Vegas, Nevada,

8918 last known address. He gives acell phone number and

gives his e-mail address. And they talk about in the text

that he's in Vegas and he's thinking about going to live

w i t h h i s b r o t h e r i n S p a i n , i t ' s a l l i n t h e r e . Yo u ' v e g o t

t o p u l l i t o u t .

B u t y o u fi l e a p o l i c e r e p o r t i n C a l i f o r n i a , i t ' s a

p u b l i c r e c o r d , l i s t i n g h i s p a r e n t s ' a d d r e s s i n R h o d e

is land, but the - - the let ter that you got at tached that

the guy sen t t o the po l i ce says tha t h i s add ress i s Las

Vegas, why do you do that? And then the next thing you

know peop le s ta r t ca l l ing h im and contac t ing h im and

threaten ing h is fami ly, inc lud ing h is parents . These are

a l l r e a s o n a b l e i n f e r e n c e s , b u t i t ' s a l s o d i r e c t e v i d e n c e

t h a t ' s i n t h i s c a s e .
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1 8 T h e w h i s t l e - b l o w e r ' s d e a t h r e m a i n s u n d e r

invest igat ion. And then i t goes through and he actual ly

— h e q u o t e s i t . H e a t t a c h e s a l i n k w h i c h n o b o d y b o t h e r e d

to read , nobody bo the red to i nves t i ga te , nobody bo the red

to look into to determine who the good guy or bad guy is.

B u t h e a t t a c h e s a l i n k f o r t h e O r l a n d o s e n t i n e l , n e w s —

break ing news . S imon P rope r t y G roup t he f t r i ng ,

why would you have somebody l ike that, that was
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involved with that, on the board of your company? And if

you were acity investing and giving tax breaks to

somebody like —some company that had somebody like that

on the board, wouldn't you want to know, especially if

you ’ re g iv ing them out tax-payer incent ives? Idon ' t care

i f i t i s on ly aquar te r cen t o f apenny in the sa les tax ,

it 's tax-payer money and it should be used properly.

B u t h e q u o t e s i n h e r e , " D a y s a f t e r a u t h o r i t y

a n n o u n c e d a r r e s t i n a t h e f t r i n g t h a t a l l e g e d l y b i l k e d 2 0

m i l l i o n d o l l a r s f r o m A m e r i c a ' s l a r g e s t c o m m e r c i a l r e a l

e s t a t e c o m p a n y, o f fi c i a l s d i s c o v e r o n l y f o u r m i l l i o n i s

now a l l eged ly m iss ing , and the l ead w i tness i n the case i s

T h e w h i s t l e - b l o w e r ' s n o w d e a d . T h a t g u y.

A n d I ' m s u r e i t w a s j u s t f o r t u i t o u s , j u s t

for tu i tous, just acoincidence, but something happened to

the whistle-blower against amember of their board, and

then people —somebody starts sending this to him. Just

luck —good luck for the defendant there, gets off ,

w h i s t l e - b l o w e r ' s d e a d , n o p r o b l e m .

Cynth ia, p lease cal l o ff your people. P lease don' t

ki l l my parents or family. Please stop your harassment

a n d d e a t h t h r e a t s , w e f e e l t h r e a t e n e d . C y n t h i a , w e w e r e

f r i e n d s a t o n e t i m e a n d w e h a v e s h a r e d a n u m b e r o f m e a l s

together. You even shared dinner with my mother and my

f a t h e r. I t c o n c e r n s m e g r e a t l y t h a t y o u w o u l d e n t e r m y
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father —mother and father 's personal address on acourt

document when you know I've not resided with the people I

call my mother and father —he was adopted —my parents

s i n c e I w a s 1 7 y e a r s o l d .

A for ty -someth ing-year -o ld man and they ' re l i s t ing

YOU would be mad if somebody listed

your parents ' address on something when people hated you.

A n d t h e y p u b l i s h e d y o u r p a r e n t s — I t h i n k t h e y c a l l i t —

i s t h a t d o x x i n g o r g a s l i g h t i n g o r w h a t e v e r, o n e o f t h e m

t h i n g s t h a t t h e y t a l k a b o u t .

A n d t h e n C C ' d t o t h i s l e t t e r — h e C C ' s i t t o t h e
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h i s p a r e n t s ' a d d r e s s .6
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B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e D e p a r t m e n t ,

he 's not very good at sending communicat ion,

ve ry de te rm ined , so I 'm su re he neve r sen t i t t o

B a r t l e s v i l l e , t h e F e d e r a l B u r e a u o f i n v e s t i g a t i o n , U . S .

A t t o r n e y ' s , s t a t e s o f C a l i f o r n i a , K a n s a s , L o u i s i a n a , a n d

Nevada, Oklahoma, and Texas.

I 'm sure they - - because1 2

H e ' s n o t1 3
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1 7

And you remember when we had Cynthia on there who

w a s , a t l e a s t a t o n e p o i n t i n t i m e — i t s e e m s r a t h e r

con fus ing to me —bu t a t one po in t i n t ime was the

p res iden t o f He raso f t , and I keep ask ing he r abou t Chad

Koehn and about the ra is ing of the money, and she couldn ' t

A t fi r s t , I
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— s h e c o u l d n ' t — c o u l d n ' t a g r e e w i t h m e .

a s k e d h e r a b o u t 1 . 4 5 m i l l i o n , t h e n I a s k e d h e r a b o u t fi v e
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1 T h i s B a r t l e s v i l l e a r t i c l e t h a t t h e S t a t e o f

Oklahoma introduced as State's Exhibit Number 6on August

the 25th of 2021, says, in March of 2021, HeraSoft

a n n o u n c e d t h e r e c e i p t o f fi v e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s i n S e r i e s A

financial funding led by United Capital Management of

Kansas, using afunding scale that the company —funding

scale, the company added to i ts sa les and market ing and

c o n t i n u e d s o f t w a r e d e v e l o p m e n t v i a i t s t e a m s i n B r a z i l ,

Europe, Grand Cayman —where they got sued, and she told

us they d idn ' t have anyth ing in the Grand Cayman, but

s h e ' s t e l l i n g t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e p a p e r s h e d o e s — K a n s a s

City, New York, Houston, Orlando, Oklahoma City, and other

l o c a t i o n s .
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W h a t ? T h e y g o t a l l t h e s e — a l l t h e s e p l a c e s ?

H e r a S o f t ' s d i v e r s i fi e d c l i e n t b a s e i n c l u d e s

H o l l a n d - b a s e d G o l d - F l o r i n a n d To u r i s m B o a r d o f Q a t a r .

DO you remember what Mr. Nelson said on that

v o i c e m a i l t o M r . R i t t e r ?

Hey, Iwrote that sof tware, and now Idon' t have

it . They took what he did for them and they're rol l ing

out their deal. And you go from gold to sel l ing port ions

o f g o l d , t o c r y p t o c u r r e n c y —

A n d t h e s e a r t i c l e s , b y t h e w a y, M s . — w e w e r e n ' t

able to get i t out here in l ive test imony, but there are

— b u t i t i s i n h e r e t h a t t h e y ' r e c l a i m i n g t h e y ' r e d o i n g
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1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9
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2 3

2 4

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



2 6 4

1 s e c u r i t y , c y b e r s e c u r i t y . O f c o u r s e , i n t h e l e t t e r s , t h e y

accuse h im of be ing ab le to hack them, but to o ther2

3 people, they claim that they're experts on cybersecuri ty.

A n d t h e n t h e y t a l k a b o u t t h i s s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t

Number 5, about how they're going to bring an additional

50 employees to Bartlesvil le. Huh? That was August the

2 6 t h o f 2 0 2 1 . I w o n d e r h o w t h a t ' s w o r k i n g o u t ?

MS. GULLETT: Objection, Your Honor. Asking the

4

5

6

7

8

j u r y t o s p e c u l a t e .9

1 0 M r. A d a m s , a g a i n , l w o u l d j u s t

remind you to argue the ev idence, p lease.

A n d t h e n i t s t a r t s t a l k i n g a b o u t i n

th is ar t i c le about how much money 's go ing to be pa id to

A n d i t s t a r t s t a l k i n g a b o u t h o w t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e

Deve lopment Agency to curve the loss o f po ten t ia l

r e s i d e n t s a n d t h e i r t a x d o l l a r s .

T H E c o u r t :

1 1

1 2 M R . A D A M S :

1 3

t h e m .1 4

1 5

1 6 I t ' s k i n d o f s a d .

Then you ge t to th i s e -ma i l tha t was sen t the nex t

d a y t o t h e c i t y a t t o r n e y, a n d h e t a l k s a b o u t i t h e r e .

T h i s w o u l d b e t h e fi r s t i d e n t i fi a b l e —

1 7

1 8

1 9

He ta lks about buy ing the o ld cour thouse and the

c o m p a n y t h a t i t ' s l i s t e d u n d e r.

T h i s w o u l d b e t h e fi r s t i d e n t i fi a b l e a s s e t i n t h e

2 0

2 1

2 2

a l l e g e d i n t e r n a t i o n a l P o n z i s c h e m e . A s y o u w e r e c e r t a i n l y

awa re , seve ra l o f t he i r adv i so r s and l eade rsh ips have

a l r e a d y b e e n f e d e r a l l y c o n v i c t e d i n t h e 7 2 2 m i l l i o n d o l l a r

2 3

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 6 5

1 B l t c 1 u b P o n z i .

2 W h e r e ' s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n ? Iknow i t ' s not mak ing

market because Ihave e-mails to Paul warning him that's3

illegal and aphone call convo with Paul assured me the

company would not make market.

And then, don ' t take h is word for i t , just c l ick

away because he a t taches in the i r s ta te 's Exh ib i t Number 9

t h a t t h e y i n t r o d u c e d , t h i s i s o n e o f t h e e - m a i l s t h a t

they ' re compla in ing about , a jus t i ce .gov /usaon-n j /b i t c lub .

u n i t e d S t a t e ' s A t t o r n e y ' s o f fi c e d i s c l o s u r e s h o w i n g t h a t

a n i n d i v i d u a l a s s o c i a t e d — w e l l , i t s a y s s e v e r a l o f t h e i r

adv i so rs and l eade rsh ip have a l ready been fede ra l l y

c o n v i c t e d .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

He's going. Hey, you don' t know who these

I t t o o k h i m a w h i l e t o fi g u r e i t o u t .

1 3

p e o p l e a r e , I d o .

b u t h e d e fi n i t e l y fi g u r e d i t o u t w h e n A n t h e m s t a r t e d

responding calm the Fdown or you're fired right now and

1 4

1 5

1 6

then threatened to say that he was, you know —

I 'm no t say i ng t ha t t hey ' r e no t good a t wha t t hey

d o , b u t , e v e n t u a l l y, y o u g e t d o w n t o t h e p o i n t t h a t

t h e r e ' s n o " t h e y ' r e " t h e r e .

1 7

1 8

1 9

A n d t h e n h e ' s t r y i n g t o t e l l

them —he 's g iv ing them the road map, the road map tha t ' s

cost him who knows how much of his t ime, of —you know.

He's g iv ing them what he paid

a d e a r p r i c e t o g e t , a n d h e ' s t r y i n g t o w a r n t h e p e o p l e o r

t he l eade rs o r t he peop le o f t h i s commun i t y, and t hey w i l l

2 0

2 1

2 2

o f h i s m o n e y, o f a l l t h i s .2 3

2 4

2 5
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n o t h e a r .1 They've been snowed.

They don ' t want to admi t that they 've been snowed.

T h e y ' v e g o t b l i n d e r s o n .

2

3 He says, As you know, through due d i l igence,

Herasoft was formed with money from Anthem Holdings, a

series of mergers and disputes stemming from Anthem Vault.

And Blanchard vault in Las Vegas, Nevada, where this group

has —fled several years ago, and many angry customers

and i nves to r s a re l ook i ng f o r t hem.

And then i t g i ves the Be t te r Bus iness Bu reau fo r

L a s Ve g a s , a l i n k ,

wha t t he U .S . A t t o rney d i d .

h e r e ' s t h e B e t t e r B u s i n e s s B u r e a u .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0 D o n ' t t a k e m y w o r d f o r i t , l o o k a t

D o n ' t t a k e m y w o r d f o r i t .

Don' t take my word for

i t , h e r e ' s a l i n k t o t h e s e a r t i c l e s a b o u t t h e d e a d

1 1

1 2

1 3

w h i s t l e - b l o w e r .1 4

T h e n — t h e n h e g i v e s t h e m a l i n k t o t h e A m e r i c a n

E x p r e s s l a w s u i t . O k a y. D o n ' t t a k e m y w o r d f o r i t , l o o k

what Amer ican Express d id w i th these peop le . Then he

gives them alink to aplace called offshoreAlert.com

c a y m a n E n t e r p r i s e s , t h e C a y m a n i s l a n d s ' s l a w s u i t . D o n ' t

take my word fo r i t , here 's where he got sued in the

Cayman islands.

Then he s ta r t s to te l l t hem abou t ano the r guy

t h a t ' s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e m , R u s s A l b e r t M e d l i n , a

B l a n c h a r d a s s o c i a t e , i n t e g r a l p a r t o f t h e B i t c l u b a n d

Hercu les , so HERC, th is supposed token o f Heraso f t . Then
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1 8

1 9
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2 4
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he goes and starts talking about Anthem Vault left Nevada

and had its employees running HeraSoft located in

B a r t l e s v i l l e f o r m a n y y e a r s .

1

2

3 They're supposed to get

money for bringing this, but they actually had some people4

h e r e .5

T h i s i s S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 9 .6 T h e n h e t a l k s t o

—there in Exh ib i t Number 10 is the c i ty o f Bar t lesv i l le

a t t o r n e y c o n t a c t i n f o r m a t i o n . P l e a s e . M i c h a e l N e l s o n t o

M i k e B a i l e y , a n d I t h i n k t h e l a d y t h a t t e s t i fi e d b e f o r e

s a i d s h e w a s t h e a s s i s t a n t a n d i t w a s b o u n c e d o v e r t o

t h e m . S o i f y o u ' r e t r y i n g t o fi g u r e o u t h o w t h i s c o m e s i n

— i n r e l a t i o n t o t h e w o m a n — a n d , I ' m s o r r y , I d o n ' t

know her name, but the blonde lady that worked for h im

for, l i ke , 20 years , she 's the firs t one that got i t and

d e c i d e d t o f o r w a r d i t .

H e t a l k s a b o u t h i s l a w y e r s w o u l d l i k e t o fi l e

le t t e rs conce rn ing HeraSo f t company. He wan ts the

i n f o r m a t i o n f r o m t h e c i t y a t t o r n e y.

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

who a re you supposed to repo r t t h i s s tu f f t o?

I w a n t t o g o t h r o u g h s o m e o f t h e s e i n s t r u c t i o n s a n d

poin t some of these out .

1 9

2 0

2 1 I ' v e a l r e a d y t a l k e d a b o u t t h e

d e fi n i t i o n o f e v i d e n c e , w h i c h i s i n t h e r e .2 2 I t ' s E x h i b i t

T h e i n f e r e n c e s f r o m t h e e v i d e n c e i s t h e c o m m o n2 3 N u m b e r 5 .

sense one we keep ta l k i ng abou t . The c i r cums tan t i a l

n a t u r e , t h e d i r e c t n a t u r e , t h a t t h e l a w m a k e s n o

2 4

2 5
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d i s t i n c t i o n b e t w e e n t h e t w o , a n d t h e w e i g h t .

N o w, t h e r e i s s o m e t h i n g t h a t ' s i n t e r e s t i n g h e r e

w h e n y o u s t a r t l o o k i n g a t t h e c i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e

i n s t r u c t i o n s .

1

2

3

A n d t h a t ' s a t N u m b e r 1 1 - F .4 I t s a y s . T h e

S t a t e r e l i e s i n p a r t f o r a c o n v i c t i o n u p o n t h e

c i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e ,

o f a c r i m e u p o n c i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e , e a c h f a c t

necessary to p rove the gu i l t o f the de fendant mus t be

es tab l i shed by the ev idence beyond a reasonab le doub t .

A l l t he f ac t s and c i r cums tances taken toge the r mus t

e s t a b l i s h t o y o u r s a t i s f a c t i o n b e y o n d a r e a s o n a b l e d o u b t .

Each fact necessary to prove the defendant must be —

T h e y ' r e r e l y i n g o n c i r c u m s t a n t i a l e v i d e n c e t o t h e

f a c t s o f t h e e v i d e n c e i n t r o d u c e d i n t h i s c a s e t o w e a v e

t h i s s t o r y t o g e t h e r t o s u p p o r t — a n d I w o u l d a r g u e i t

T h e r e a r e l o t s o f f a c t s , e s p e c i a l l y t h a t fi r s t

t e x t m e s s a g e , w h e r e h e ' s — i t ' s c l e a r t h a t h e ' s c a l l i n g

t h e m o u t .

5

I n o r d e r t o w a r r a n t a c o n v i c t i o n6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 d o e s n o t .

1 7

1 8

N u m b e r 1 2 i s w h e r e t h e y t a l k a b o u t t h e c r e d i b i l i t y

A n d i t t e l l s y o u i t — a n d t h i s i s n ' t

a n e x h a u s t i v e l i s t — b u t t h e l a w g o e s t h r o u g h a n d t r i e s

to exp la in t h ings tha t you may wan t t o cons ide r i n j udg ing

t h e w i t n e s s e s ' c r e d i b i l i t y .

1 9

o f t h e w i t n e s s e s .2 0

2 1

2 2

T h e y t a l k a b o u t t h e i n t e r e s t ,

i f a n y, o f t h e w i t n e s s e s w h i c h h a v e — i n t h e r e s u l t o f

t h e t r i a l .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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Like the man that values his money more than his

f r i e n d s , l i k e t h e m a n t h a t t e s t i fi e d t o d a y f r o m - - a n d I ' m

n o t e v e n s u r e w h a t t h a t ' s a b o u t .

1

2

3 A n d i t ' s i n t h i s — i t ' s

i n a l l t h e s e l e t t e r s a n d e - m a i l s a n d s t u f f o f K o e h n .4 H e ' s

i n v o l v e d i n a l a w s u i t w i t h C h a d K o e h n .5 w e c a n ' t g e t

a n y b o d y t o s a y i t o u t l o u d i n c o u r t , b u t h e ' s i n v o l v e d6

w i t h a l a w s u i t i n v o l v e d w i t h C h a d K o e h n .7

And he ' s ca l l i ng peop le tha t he m igh t wan t t o

depose as witnesses of Koehn.

people because he's picking his fr iends, and his fr iends

are running to Koehn.

8

9 NOW, he's picking bad

1 0

B u t h o w i n t h e w o r l d d o e s h i m1 1

d e f e n d i n g h i m s e l f a g a i n s t a l a w s u i t i n K a n s a s , a p p a r e n t l y

asignificant lawsui t , but how does that have anything to

d o w i t h h i m h a r a s s i n g — a n d I ' l l — I ' m a b o u t t o g e t t o

t hese e l emen ts —harass i ng Cyn th i a B lancha rd?

I t h a s n o t h i n g t o d o w i t h i t .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Oh, you can ' t say

any th i ng t ha t cou ld even poss ib l y i n f e r any th i ng t o make1 7

s o m e b o d y l o o k b a d . Yo u c a n ' t d e f e n d y o u r s e l f i n t h i s

c iv i l su i t because chad Koehn knows Cynth ia B lanchard.

How 's tha t ge t the S ta te ' s peanu t one inch fu r the r down

t h e r o a d ? H e ' s g o t a r i g h t t o d e f e n d h i m s e l f a g a i n s t t h a t

l a w s u i t .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

I t t a l k s i n h e r e a b o u t c a n d o r , f a i r n e s s . I t t a l k s

a b o u t t h e i r a b i l i t y t o r e m e m b e r. A n d I ' m n o t s a y i n g s h e

c a n ' t r e m e m b e r . I t h i n k s h e d o e s r e m e m b e r , s h e r e m e m b e r s

2 3

2 4

2 5
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a l l t o o w e l l .1 S h e d o e s n ' t w a n t t o a d m i t b e c a u s e s h e

2 doesn't want to answer questions about 1t.

d e fl e c t i n g .

S h e ' s

3

s o l e t ' s g e t t o - - a n d h e r e ' s t h e w a y t h i s w o r k s

and I just want to keep touching on i t .

i n n o c e n t .

4

5 He's presumed

I t ' s one o f our b i r th r igh ts as c i t i zens o f

th is country that we have the const i tut ional r ight to the

p r e s u m p t i o n o f i n n o c e n c e , a n d w e h a v e a c o n s t i t u t i o n a l

6

7

8

r i gh t t o a t r i a l by j u ry. And , you know, you see a lo t o f

p e o p l e — I d i d n ' t v o i r d i r e o n h o w y o u f e e l a b o u t

criminal defense attorneys because people don't real ly

like to say with me standing here, okay? But you hear a

l o t o f p e o p l e s a y i n g s t u f f i n t h e m e d i a , a n d y o u ' l l h a v e

people saying in conversations where they complain about

c r i m i n a l d e f e n s e a t t o r n e y s l i k e w e ' r e s o m e k i n d o f

d e s t r u c t i o n i s t . O k a y ?

We l l , y o u k n o w w h a t ; I ' m i n t h e C o n s t i t u t i o n . L a w

enforcement is not in the Const i tut ion. Local prosecutors

a re no t i n the Cons t i t u t i on . I don ' t even know i f a judge

i s t h e C o n s t i t u t i o n . I ' m i n t h e C o n s t i t u t i o n . A n d i f

you ' re look ing fo r me, I 'm in the he s ix th Amendment ,

r i g h t t o c o u n s e l a n d r i g h t t o t r i a l b y j u r y .

A m I a n o b s t r u c t i o n i s t ? I f y o u ' r e d o i n g i t r i g h t .

That 's what you ' re supposed to be do ing , you ' re supposed

to be s l ow ing down and t r y i ng t o s top and res t r i c t t he

9
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1 power of the government so —because that's what protects

us f rom t y ranny.

I t h i n k 1 8 i s a n i m p o r t a n t i n s t r u c t i o n . I f y o u

look at i t , i t goes through and i t talks, once again,

abou t beyond a reasonab le doub t , and t hen i t ca r r i es f r om

z e r o t o fi v e y e a r s a n d u p t o a $ 5 , 0 0 0 fi n e .

Now, look , I 'm not p resuming to te l l you how to do

y o u r j o b . I c o u l d m a k e a r g u m e n t s w i t h a r e a s o n a b l e

i n f e r e n c e , b u t , u l t i m a t e l y, i t ' s y o u r c a l l . I t ' s y o u g u y s

t h a t a r e g o i n g t o h a v e t o l i v e w i t h t h e d e c i s i o n . B u t I

w o u l d a r g u e , a n d I c e r t a i n l y, i n n o w a y, s h a p e , o r f o r m

a r e e v e r s u g g e s t i n g t h a t I b e l i e v e f o r a m i n u t e — y o u

k n o w t h a t — I ' m n o t c o n c e d i n g t h a t M r. N e l s o n ' s g u i l t y,

t h a t ' s n o t w h a t I ' m s a y i n g , w h a t I ' m s a y i n g i s , i t

c a r r i e s f r o m z e r o t o fi v e y e a r s .

A n d I o n l y g e t o n e o p p o r t u n i t y t o t a l k , s h e g e t s

t w o . Z e r o i s l e s s t h a n fi v e . I t s a y s n o t m o r e t h a n fi v e

y e a r s , w e l l , z e r o i s a n u m b e r l e s s t h a n fi v e .

A n d t h e n I ' d l i k e t o g e t i n t o 1 9 , w h i c h i s t h e

e l e m e n t s . I t g i v e s a l i t t l e i n t r o d u c t i o n . N o p e r s o n m a y

be conv ic ted o f v io la t ing Ok lahoma computer Cr imes Act

un less the s ta te has proved beyond areasonab le doubt each

element of the crime. These are: F i r s t , c o m m u n i c a t e d

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
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w i t h ; a c o m p u t e r s y s t e m o r n e t w o r k ; t h i r d , f o r t h e p u r p o s e

o f us ing the access .

2 4

A n d t h e n i t g e t s i n t o t h e s t a l k i n g2 5
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1 a s p e c t o f i t .

2 Yeah , Mr. Ne lson used acompute r sys tem. He

communicated with it, which is oddly written the way that

the l eg i s la tu re wro te i t . commun ica ted w i th . Bu t I ag ree

w i t h w h a t s h e ' s a r g u e d o n t h o s e fi r s t t w o e l e m e n t s , t h a t

that's what they meant. For the purpose of using access.

NO, he did it for the purpose of protecting people from

being taken advantage of like he had been taken advantage

of . He d id i t for the purpose of exerc is ing h is

const i tu t iona l ly -pro tec ted r igh t to f ree speech. He had a

l e g i t i m a t e b a s i s t o d o i t .

And, second, you get in there —so Iwould argue

tha t t he th i rd e lemen t , t ha t t he S ta te o f Ok lahoma has no t

m e t . H o w e a s y w o u l d i t b e ? D u s t t h i n k a b o u t i t . H o w

e a s y w o u l d i t b e ? Yo u ' r e i n v o l v e d w i t h t h e s e p e o p l e . Yo u

wr i t e t h i s p rog ram. You send you r l e t t e r on November t he

7th. YOU have aphone call with the general counsel, and

you can prove i t . You say. Don't be self-deal ing, guys.

D o n ' t d o t h a t . T h a t — t h a t ' s a g a i n s t t h e l a w . D o n ' t d o

t h a t . A n d y o u s e n d y o u r e - m a i l o u t . A n d t h e n m o n t h s

later, you find out, you know, these guys are doing it

a g a i n . T h e y ' r e d o i n g i t . E v e n t h o u g h I t o l d t h e m n o t t o

d o i t , I s a i d I ' m n o t d o w n f o r i t , I ' m n o t i n v o l v e d , i

don ' t wan t t o be i nvo l ved , t hese guys a re do ing i t aga in ,

w h a t s h o u l d I d o ?
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1 How easy would 1t be to just turn ablind eye? Say

w e l l , y o u k n o w, I o w n 1 . 5 m i n i o n s h a r e s o f t h e s t o c k .

YOU know, maybe, who knows. Idon't know If 1t'l1 work,

but they seem dead set on doing it and maybe they'll hit a

h o m e r u n . I ' l l b e s i t t i n g p r e t t y t h e n . l u s t t u r n a b l i n d

eye to i t . I ' ve go t my p ro tec t i on . I ' ve go t th i s e -ma i l .

I e v e n s e n t i t b l i n d C C t o s o m e w h e r e e l s e s o I c o u l d m a k e

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 sure Icou ld prove that noth ing 's go ing to happen. I 've

got th is e -mai1 , and id idn ' t do any th ing wrong. I ' ve got

my get -out -o f - ja i l - f ree card. And i f they get caught and

they get ind ic ted. I ' l l say not me. lus t go a long wi th

y o u r l i f e . T h a t w o u l d h a v e b e e n e a s y.

Mr. Nelson doesn ' t do easy, what does he do?

Where 's the th ree mi l l ion do l la rs? Iknow i t ' s no t mak ing

m a r k e t . I ' v e t a l k e d t o P a u l a b o u t t h e e - m a i l . H e c a t c h e s

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 them do ing i t aga in , and he con f ron ts them on i t .

pa id agreat p r ice fo r charac ter and fo r p r inc ip le ,

some th ing we used to be l i eve i n i n t h i s coun t r y.

T h e n i t g e t s i n h e r e a n d t a l k s a b o u t w i l l f u l l y.

N o w, t h a t ' s a c o u p l e o f p a g e s l a t e r .

A n d a f t e r w i l l f u l l y , i t s a y s m a l i c i o u s l y .

A n d t h e r e ' s a d e fi n i t i o n o f

A n d h e

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 There 's two pages o f

d e fi n i t i o n s .2 1

T h a t ' s i n t e r e s t i n g ,

m a l i c i o u s l y i n 2 1 .

T h e t e r m i m p o r t s a w i s h t o v e x , a n n o y, o r i n j u r e

To v e x , a n n o y, o r i n j u r e .

2 2

2 3

2 4

another person. w h a t ' s t h e2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 7 4

1 purpose? Well, he*s blowing the whistle. I’m not saying

he’s John the Baptist, but he’s certainly avoice crying

in the wilderness, and nobody’s listening to him.

But when he sends that letter —by the way, which

is no t an e -ma i l wh ich we ’ve ta l ked abou t —but when he

sends th i s l e t te r tha t Cyn th ia i s so te r r i fied o f —you

rea l i ze fo r her to be av ic t im, she 's go t to be te r r i fied?

And we’re going to get to that here in just asecond.

He says , Cyn th ia , you need to rea l l y look a t what

y o u ’ r e d o i n g t o w h o m — w i t h m y e l d e r l y p a r e n t s — I ’ m

so r ry - - wha t you ’ re do ing and w i th whom. My e lde r l y

pa ren ts do no t dese rve these so r t o f t h rea ts , no r do —

d i d — n o o n e d i d a n y t h i n g w h i c h d e s e r v e s d e a t h . Yo u a r e

m a k i n g u s a l l a f r a i d f o r o u r l i v e s , i s t h a t t h e k i n d o f

le t te r you send to somebody tha t you ’ re hop ing to

m a l i c i o u s l y — i s t h a t a m a l i c i o u s a c t ? Yo u ’ r e s e n d i n g

t h i s t o t h e c i t y a t t o r n e y , i s t h a t a m a l i c i o u s a c t ?

T h e t e r m i m p o r t s a w i s h t o v e x , a n n o y, o r i n j u r e

a n o t h e r p e r s o n . H e ’ s a s k i n g t h e m n o t t o i n j u r e h i m . H e ’ s

a s k i n g t h e m n o t t o i n j u r e h i s p a r e n t s .

THE COURT: M r. A d a m s , t h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r h a s

been do ing th i s fo r abou t two and aha l f hours now, and I

t h i n k s h e n e e d s a b r e a k . I t h i n k o u r j u r o r s m a y n e e d a

b r e a k , s o I d o n ’ t w a n t t o c u t y o u o f f , b u t w e ’ v e b e e n i n

h e r e f o r a l m o s t t w o a n d a h a l f h o u r s , a n d I k n o w i t w a s n ’ t
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a l l you, but i f you' re going to be much longer, I th ink

that it would be best to give the court reporter and the

j u r o r s a b r e a k .

1

2

3

4 MR. ADAMS: I f t h e j u r o r s w o u l d l o v e a b r e a k ,

1*11 be happy -- I’ve got 10, maybe 15 minutes.

THE COURT: o k a y . L e t ' s t a k e a s h o r t b r e a k .

And Iha te to in te r rup t you , bu t Ido —i t has been qu i te
s o m e t i m e .

5

6

7

8

(Whereupon , ab r i e f r ecess was t aken .

T h e r e a f t e r, p r o c e e d i n g s r e s u m e d a s f o l l o w s : )

THE COURT: Okay, we are now back on the record

i n S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a v e r s u s M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

IS the S ta te ready?1 3

MS. gullett: Y e s , l u d g e .1 4

1 5 THE COURT: Mr. Adams, are you ready?

1 6 MR. ADAMS: Y e s .

THE COURT: M a d a m B a i l i f f , w o u l d y o u p l e a s e

d i r e c t t h e j u r o r s b a c k t o t h e i r p l a c e i n t h e j u r y b o x .

(The following took place within the presence and

h e a r i n g o f t h e j u r y : )

THE COURT: P l e a s e b e s e a t e d .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Mr. Adams, you may continue.

MR. ADAMS: when we stopped, we were on

i n s t r u c t i o n 1 9 . I w a s g o i n g t h r o u g h t h e c o u n t s , t h e

second coun t o f t he seven . And , ma l i c i ous l y, you know.

2 3

2 4

2 5
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t h a t ' s w h e r e t h e — h e y, t h i s i s w h e r e t h e f r e e s p e e c h

T h i s i s w h e r e o u r c o n s t i t u t i o n a l r i g h t s c o m e

1

2 c o m e s i n .

i n .3 He d idn ' t —he wasn ' t mal ic ious ly do ing th is ,

w a s d o i n g i t t o p r o t e c t o t h e r s ,

s a c r i fi c e t o h i m s e l f .

H e

4 H e d i d i t a t g r e a t

He could have went along to get5

a l o n g .6

H a r a s s e s a n o t h e r p e r s o n . I w o u l d s u b m i t t o y o u

that common sense, which we l ike to talk about common

s e n s e , j u s t t e l l s y o u - - y o u t h i n k t h e O k l a h o m a s t a t e

legislature wanted to pass alaw about harassment and they

wanted to just say, hey, let 's stop people from harassing

folks, from harassing people that are committing crimes by

r e p o r t i n g i t t o m u l t i p l e a g e n c i e s ? i s t h a t c o m m o n s e n s e ?

IS this what our statutes are for? That, hey, we're going

to p ro tec t peop le t ha t a re de f raud ing , you know,

h a r d - w o r k i n g f o l k s t h a t a r e t r y i n g t o i n v e s t f o r t h e i r —

t h e i r r e t i r e m e n t o r i n v e s t f o r t h e k i d s ' f u t u r e , t h e k i d s '

c o l l e g e , w e ' r e g o i n g t o p r o t e c t t h o s e p e o p l e f r o m

h a r a s s i n g w h i s t l e - b l o w e r s .

The b ig p rob lem we go t i n t h i s s ta te i s

w h i s t l e - b l o w e r s j u s t w o n ' t s t o p b l o w i n g t h e w h i s t l e , a n d

we need to s top tha t , so we ' re go ing to s top tha t f rom

harass ing. Does that make common sense to you? No, i t

d o e s n ' t .
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The Sta te 's t ry ing to fi t asquare peg in around2 5
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h o l e .1 Like my dad used to say, if it doesn't work, get a

Bu t I don ' t t h i nk t he re ' s ab ig enough

hammer to hammer this square peg into the round hole

bigger hammer.2

3

t h e y ' r e t r y i n g t o fi t i t .

F i f t h , i n a m a n n e r t h a t w o u l d c a u s e a r e a s o n a b l e

person. Iwould just submi t to you, areasonable person

wouldn't be involved in aPonzi scheme to begin with. The

same issue. You th ink the legis lature is passing alaw to

p r o t e c t r e a s o n a b l e c r i m i n a l s , r e a s o n a b l e p e o p l e t o d e f r a u d

f o l k s ? N o .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

The other issue on the free speech thing lwant to

N o w , I k n o w t h a t t h e d e t e c t i v e s a i d

t h e r e w a s n o — I t h i n k h e s a i d r e a s o n a b l e s u s p i c i o n t h a t

A n d h e

1 1

a d d r e s s a l i t t l e b i t .1 2

1 3

a n y t h i n g h a d h a p p e n e d i n h i s j u r i s d i c t i o n ,

d i s a g r e e d w h e n I a s k e d h i m i f i t ' d b e a f a i r c r i t i c i s m t o

say he pu t b l inders on , so —

R e g a r d l e s s , t h e q u e s t i o n i s :

a s i n c e r e b e l i e f t h a t t h i s i s t r u e ?

1 4

1 5

1 6

D o e s M r . N e l s o n h a v e1 7

1 8 H e l o s t h i s j o b o v e r

He walked away from acompany he'd been there fori t .1 9

y e a r s , t h a t h e o w n e d a m i l l i o n a n d a h a l f s t o c k ,

harassed and harassed and harassed and had his parents'

a d d r e s s d o x x e d o u t t h e r e .

2 0 H e w a s

2 1

2 2

T h i s i s n ' t a s i t u a t i o n w h e r e y o u h a v e t o s a y. H e y,

l o o k , i f y o u b e l i e v e — i f h e ' s r i g h t a b o u t t h e m b e i n g —

about them be ing cor rupt and runn ing aPonz i scheme, then

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 he 's no t gu i l t y. Tha t ' s no t what I 'm say ing . The

quest ion is was i t —did he be l ieve i t? D id he rea l ly —

did he bel ieve i t? I 'm try ing to add reason in there,

was i t asincerely-held bel ief? Yeah. And you know why

it's asincerely-held believe? Because he put his money
w h e r e h i s m o u t h i s .

People would tel l you anything, and they wi l l . But

the question is, when push —what —what you do speaks

so loud, Ican't hear what you say. And you can expect

people —you can't expect them to act logical ly, but you

e x p e c t t h e m t o a c t c o n s i s t e n t l y.

GO back and look at that e-mail, if you haven't

already got it memorized, or that text message where he

s a y s , " w h e r e ' s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s ? " a n d s e e h i s

response . They wanted h im to shu t up about i t because i t

wou ld ge t t hem in t r oub le .

S i x t h , t o f e e l f r i g h t e n e d , i n t i m i d a t e d , t h r e a t e n e d ,

o r h a r a s s e d . T h e r e ' s a d e fi n i t i o n o f h a r a s s m e n t . A

pattern or course of conduct directed toward the person

tha t wou ld cause a reasonab le pe rson t o su f f e r emo t i ona l

d i s t r e s s a n d a c t u a l l y c a u s e e m o t i o n a l d i s t r e s s .

I w o u l d a r g u e t w o t h i n g s . O n e i s a r e a s o n a b l e

p e r s o n w o u l d n ' t b e r i p p i n g p e o p l e o f f . T h a t ' s t h e v e r y

a n t i s — t h a t ' s t h e — I c a n ' t u s e t h e s e b i g w o r d s .

That 's the very opposi te o f reasonable when somebody is
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r ipp ing somebody o f f .1 And the other issue is, any

e m o t i o n a l d i s t r e s s s h e m a y h a v e s u f f e r e d w a s a r e s u l t o f2

her fear about get t ing caught for the cr iminal —cr iminal

b e h a v i o r t h a t s h e w a s i n v o l v e d i n .

the s ta tu te 's there to p ro tec t .

3

4 A n d t h a t ' s n o t w h a t

5 I t ' s t u r n i n g i t o n i t s

h e a d .6

A n d t h e s e v e n t h :7 S o i t ' s b o t h a n o b j e c t i v e a n d a

sub jec t i ve s tandard , and they go t to p rove each e lement .8

Ac tua l l y causes the person be ing harassed to

f e e l f r i g h t e n e d , i n t i m i d a t e d , t h r e a t e n e d , o r h a r a s s e d ,

w o u l d i t c a u s e a r e a s o n a b l e p e r s o n ; t h e s i x t h , t o

f e e l f r i g h t e n e d o r i n t i m i d a t e d ,

a p e r s o n , i t w o u l d n ' t c a u s e t h e m t h a t b e c a u s e a r e a s o n a b l e

p e r s o n i s n o t o u t s t e a l i n g f r o m p e o p l e ,

d i d n ' t a c t u a l l y c a u s e h e r a n y t h i n g t h a t s h e f e l t w a s a

resu l t o f f ea r o f hav ing to pay the consequences fo r he r

a c t i o n s .

S e v e n t h i s :9

1 0 S o

o n e i s :1 1

I w o u l d s a y n o r e a s o n a b l e1 2

1 3

A n d s e v e n t h , i t1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

I n v o i r d i r e — a n d I d o n ' t k n o w — I c a n ' t1 8

r e m e m b e r i f a n y b o d y s a i d i t o r n o t — b u t a l o t o f t i m e s

l a w y e r s a n d j u d g e s w i l l s a y i t . v o i r d i r e , v o i r d i r e i s

F r e n c h , t o s p e a k t h e t r u t h . A n d t h e r e a r e t w o j u d g e s i n a

c a s e a n d i t ' s t h a t w a y i n c i v i l , t o o , I g u e s s . B u t i n a

c r i m i n a l c a s e , t h e r e a r e t w o j u d g e s . T h e j u d g e d e t e r m i n e s

the law, judges the law, and you guys de te rmine the fac ts .

T h e y c a l l y o u t h e fi n d e r o f f a c t . I w i s h t h e y w o u l d

1 9
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change i t a l i t t le b i t and ca l l you guys the finder o f the

t r u t h .

1

2

3 B u t , a c t u a l l y , t h a t ' s j u s t a n i d y l l i c v i e w o f i t .

The rea l i ssue is you have to dec ide whether the Sta te o f

Oklahoma has proven every element of the offense beyond a

B u t I h o p e t h a t y o u m a k e y o u r v e r d i c t

4

5

r e a s o n a b l e d o u b t .6

s p e a k t h e t r u t h .

What 's real ly unusual about our cr iminal just ice

sys tem and abou t t he j u r y sys tem i t se l f i s t ha t mos t

systems throughout humanity, in order to be in charge of

the system, you have to have alot of experience. To make

the big decisions, you got to have alot of e x p e r i e n c e .

But they let you guys make the big decision o r t h e y l e t

j u r o r s m a k e t h e b i g d e c i s i o n , e x a c t l y b e c a u s e t h e y d o n ' t

h a v e a n y e x p e r i e n c e . T h a t ' s t h e p r o t e c t i o n . I t ' s b e t w e e n

us and the government.

I'd ask you guys to end t h i s n i g h t m a r e f o r

Mr. Nelson and let him get out of the state o f O k l a h o m a

w h e r e h e d i d n ' t w a n t t o b e i n t h e fi r s t p l a c e .

THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , J u d g e .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Lad ies and gent lemen, I 'm go ing to t ry to be as

b r i e f a s p o s s i b l e ,

c l o s e .

2 2

Th is i s my second a t tempt —second

I g e t t o t a l k t o y o u o n e m o r e t i m e .

2 3

2 4

when we were here in voir dire on Monday, we talked2 5
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1 a b o u t a c c o u n t a b i l i t y . A n d I b e l i e v e i f m y c o u n t i s

2 cor rec t , I th ink there a re four o f you on th is ju ry tha t

sa id tha t i t i s - - accoun tab i l i t y i s impor tan t ,

held accountable for your actions is important,

w h a t w e ' r e h e r e f o r .

3 Being

T h a t i s4

5 W e a r e h e r e b e c a u s e M r. N e l s o n i s

b e i n g h e l d a c c o u n t a b l e f o r h i s a c t i o n s .

T h e r e h a s b e e n t a l k , a f t e r t a l k , a f t e r t a l k a b o u t

these threats that Mr. Nelson has had against himself, his

f a m i l y , h i s l i v e l i h o o d , h i s h o m e , h i s c h i l d r e n , t h a t I

d o n ' t b e l i e v e e x i s t , a n d a l l t h e s e o t h e r t h i n g s ,

s ing le one of those threats come f rom someth ing Mr. Nelson

h a s w r i t t e n o r s a i d .

6

7

8

9

1 0 E v e r y

1 1

1 2

There has been one piece of evidence over here or

in th is s tack tha t says anywhere tha t Mr. Ne lson has been

t h e v i c t i m o f a s i n g l e t h r e a t b y t h e B l a n c h a r d s , o r ,

because we can' t seem to leave h im out of th is case, Mr.

C o w a n , w h o l i v e s i n K a n s a s .

We ta lked about th is on Monday. The words o f

c o u n s e l i s n o t e v i d e n c e . E v e r y t h i n g I ' m s a y i n g t o y o u

r i g h t n o w, n o t e v i d e n c e . T h a t ' s a l l e v i d e n c e . E v e r y t h i n g

you hea rd i s ev idence . I f you be l i eve wha t Mr. Ne l son has

w r i t t e n i n h i s e - m a i l s , w h a t h e h a s s a i d i n h i s

vo i cema i l s , wha t he has a l l eged i n t hese l i nks t ha t we

don ' t have cop ies o f , t hen maybe , j us t maybe , t he c i t y o f

Bar t lesv i l l e , the commun i ty o f Wash ing ton Coun ty, owes Mr.

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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N e l s o n a d e b t o f g r a t i t u d e b e c a u s e I g u e s s h e w a s t r y i n g

B u t I d o n ' t t h i n k t h a t ' s w h a t r e a l l y w a s

1

t o s a v e u s a l l .2

happening.3

Mr. Ne lson shou ld have had abso lu te ly noth ing to do

with the company HeraSoft .

t h e y e x i s t e d i n B a r t l e s v i l l e w i t h o u t d o i n g a s p e c i fi c

Google search for Anthem and Cynthia Blanchard,

l i v e h e r e ; w e a r e n o t a l a r g e c i t y ,

communi ty w i th smal l bus inesses,

t o b e h e r e ?

4

H e s h o u l d n ' t h a v e e v e n k n o w n5

6

Y o u - a l l7

w e a r e a s m a l l e r8

HOW did Mr. Nelson get9

1 0

Defense counse l makes apo in t to say tha t he

reaches out to Cynthia more than Anthem,

f e e l s l i k e h e c a n c o n t a c t h e r, h e c a n r e l a t e t o h e r, f e e l s

more comfo r tab le reach ing ou t to he r.

h e r b e c a u s e h e ' s o b s e s s e d .

1 1

Oh, because he1 2
.'***r-

1 3

H e r e a c h e s o u t t o1 4

H e d o e s n ' t r e a c h o u t t o1 5

An them. He reaches ou t t o Cyn th ia because he can ' t l e t i t

g o . H e g o t fi r e d . H e l o s t h i s j o b . H e t h r e a t e n e d t o

shoot someone on their board and they said, you know what,

see you la te r. You don ' t ge t t o be on th i s company any

more because you' re dangerous and you' re scary.

T h e r e c o n t i n u e s t o b e t h i s t a l k a b o u t — i n t h i s

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

tex t message exchange abou t the re be ing aconversa t ion

abou t them se l l i ng —pump ing up - - wha t was i t , pump ing

i t i n t o t h e m a r k e t , t r y i n g t o g e t s o m e m o n e y — e x t r a

money on the stuff , Ponzi scheming, whatever that means.

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 Yo u c a n r e a d t h i s w o r d f o r w o r d .

I a s k e d f o r H E R C t o k e n s t o b e a b l e t o u s e — I

asked for HERC tokens to be able to use the platform and

was told to go buy them.

So he apparently asked for some of these, whatever

HERC tokens were, because it's very confusing. And then

they said. No, you have to buy them. okay, which Idid,

with my own money at 40 cents each, sounds pretty good.

Number who (sic), we assume is from Cynthia, who told you

t h a t ?

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

Response from Mr. Nelson: A n t h e m . A n d t h e n h e

sen t me to a l i nk to buy them! And then Logan , whoever

t h a t i s , s a i d i f I w a n t t o t r y t h e p l a t f o r m , I h a d t o b u y

the t okens l i ke eve ryone e l se .

O k a y . I d o n ' t s e e a p r o b l e m w i t h t h a t . Yo u w a n t

to do whatever they ' re do ing , you buy them l i ke everybody

e l s e d o e s . S o u n d s p r e t t y n o r m a l .

And then I j us t f ound ou t t ha t Ka ty and shannon

have over 25,000 each!

2 5 , 0 0 0 H E R C t o k e n s ? $ 2 5 , 0 0 0 ? D o n ' t k n o w. I t

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

d o e s n ' t s a y.2 1

So is he mad because maybe somebody else in the

c o m p a n y g o t a l i t t l e i n c e n t i v e ? I d o n ' t k n o w. T h i s i s a

company out of Cali fornia. I t has nothing to do with

Washington County, has nothing to do with us.

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 They offered to send me tokens to demo the

So maybe this Katy and Shannon offered to send2 p l a t f o r m s ,

h i m s o m e t o k e n s .

Then he goes on to say, That's areal slap in the
face. And then today, Anthem sends some dude idon't know

an e-mail, bastardized my brother's title when he up for
par tner at Del io t te —idon' t know how you say i t —

G l o b a l t h a t o w n s t h e f r a n c h i s e s ,

what does that mean? where does any of this say

Ponzi scheme, dumping whatever into the market to make

more money?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 N e x t l i n e , w h e r e i s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s ? I

know i t ' s no t mak ing marke t because lhave e -ma i l s to Pau l

w a r n i n g h i m t h a t ' s i l l e g a l .

S t i l l n o r e s p o n s e s . T h i s i s a l l t h e s a m e t h r e a d

t h a t M r . N e l s o n i s w r i t i n g ,

in aphone convo wi th Paul , he assured me the

company would not make market,

okay. Nowhere in he re does i t say. An them

Blanchard, you son of agun, how dare you dump stu ff —

pump-and-dump into this market to make more money. How

dare you run aPonzi scheme. How dare you steal money

f r o m l i t t l e o l d p e o p l e a n d t a k e t h e i r mo n e y. H o w d a re yo u

d o a n y o f t h a t . I ' m r e p o r t i n g y o u . I ' m c a l l i n g t h e F C C .

I ' m c a l l i n g t h e F B I . D o i n g a l l t h i s s t u f f . D o e s n ' t s a y

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 it. Doesn't say it anywhere in there.

Mr. Nelson's mad because he didn't get something that
someone else got.

So then he gets pissed, so then he calls

Mr. Heatwole. And then he tells Mr. Heatwole that he's

going to shoot him, that he better get abodyguard because
then he's going to shoot him. come to his house. That's

in he re , t oo . You can read wha t Mr. Hea two le sa id .

Ladies and gent lemen, th is is an invent ion. Al l of

this Ponzi scheme, all of this the Blanchards are bad, all

of this they're out to get the money, they're coming to

Bartlesville to get us, they came here to take advantage

of our l itt le town, it is all made up so that he can

c o n t i n u e t o h a r a s s t h e B l a n c h a r d s . T h a t i s w h a t h e h a s

I t s o u n d s l i k e

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

done since he was fired, because he was mad because he

made athreat , and then he has cont inued to harass and

1 5

1 6

harass and follow them everywhere.

And finally, the state of Oklahoma, through the

Bart lesvi l le Pol ice Department said. No, thank you, s ir.

w e ' r e d o n e .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 I f y o u h a v e a p r o b l e m w i t h a c o m p a n y, i f

y o u ' r e m a d a t w a l m a r t , i f y o u ' r e m a d a t F r a n k & L o l a ' s , i f

you ' re mad at anybody, th is is not the way you go about

r e p o r t i n g a c r i m e .

I f y o u ' r e t h i n k — i f y o u t h i n k a P o n z i s c h e m e i s

h a p p e n i n g i n a s m a l l l i t t l e c o m m u n i t y y o u ' v e n e v e r h e a r d

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



2 8 6

1 of where you're going to help them out, don't you think
you would contact local law enforcement and actually do a
po l ice repor t?

t h e m ,

that ever happened.

2

3 Imean, i t says in the le t ter he contacted

That's what i t says, but there is no record that4

5

6 MR. ADAMS: Object ion, Judge. That quest ion was

n e v e r a s k e d a n d t h e r e ' s n o e v i d e n c e o f i t . S h e ' s

t e s t i f y i n g .

7

8

9 THE COURT: c o m e f o r w a r d .

(Whereupon, asidebar conference ensued and was

recorded outside the hearing of the jury. This was

no t a reques ted pa r t o f t h i s t r ansc r i p t i on . )

THE COURT: o n c e a g a i n , l a d i e s a n d g e n t l e m e n , I

wi l l remind you that you are the determine —it is your

r e c o l l e c t i o n o f w h a t w a s s a i d o n t h e s t a n d t h a t c o n t r o l s .

N o t h i n g I s a y, n o t h i n g t h a t e i t h e r o f t h e a t t o r n e y s s a y

a r e — i s e v i d e n c e .

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

You may continue.

MS. gullett: T h a n k y o u , j u d g e .

The po in t i s , the s ta te o f Ok lahoma i s ask ing you

t o t a k e a l o o k a t t h i s l e t t e r t h a t w a s w r i t t e n . L o o k a t

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

t h i s l e t t e r i n t h e e n t i r e t y — t h e r e ' s s o m e i n t e r e s t i n g

s t u f f w r i t t e n i n h e r e — a n d s e e t h a t i t d o e s s a y t h a t

t h e r e ' s a C C l i n e h e r e ; B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e D e p a r t m e n t

The re a re t h ree U .S . a t t o rneys

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 F B I , U . S . a t t o r n e y s .
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offices in Oklahoma, it doesn't designate which one.

State of California, Kansas, Louisiana, Nevada,
Oklahoma, and Texas.

There are no ac tua l addresses.

1

2

3 Again, where did you send that?

S o w h a t t h i s c o u l d b e i s a

letter to threaten Cynthia to think that he is attempting
to involve all of these people that he CCs on here.

4

5

6 C C S

o n h e r e .7

8 Ladies and gentlemen, Iam not going to belabor

t h i s p o i n t a n y m o r e . Yo u h a v e h e a r d a l l t h e e v i d e n c e i n

this case, you are the tr iers of fact, and so Iask you to

find Mr. Nelson gui l ty of this case, of the cr ime of

c o m p u t e r — u s i n g a c o m p u t e r t o s t a l k C y n t h i a B l a n c h a r d .

And Iask that you sentence him to three years to do in

the Depar tment o f Cor rec t ions because i t has been three

years that he has spent his t ime harassing, stalking,

t e r ro r i z i ng Cyn th i a and An them.

But you heard from Cynthia. They moved here in May

o f 2 0 2 0 . w e a r e n o w i n F e b r u a r y o f 2 0 2 3 . I t h i n k t h a t

th ree years i s an appropr ia te number and tha t ' s wha t i

wou ld ask t ha t you f o l l ow.

Thank you, ladies and gent lemen,

( w h e r e u p o n , f u r t h e r i n s t r u c t i o n s o f t h e c o u r t

w e r e g i v e n . T h e b a i l i f f w a s s w o r n . T h e a l t e r n a t e

juror was excused. This was not arequested

p a r t o f t h i s r e c o r d . N o f u r t h e r r e c o r d w a s

9
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1 requested as apart of this transcription until the
v e r d i c t . )2

3 S o w e a r e n o w b a c k o n t h e r e c o r d i n

State of Oklahoma versus Eric —Michael Eric Nelson.

T H E C O U R T:

4 T h e

jury has sent out their second —well, actually, their
t h i r d q u e s t i o n .

5

6 The first two were rather easy to answer.

One was requesting sticky notes and markers, and the other7

8 w a s , i s a t r a n s c r i p t a v a i l a b l e ,

s e n t b a c k i n .

Those we re answered and

9

1 0 However, th is one is a l i t t le b i t more compl icated

in that the quest ion is , is a lesser charge poss ib le? And

that was sent out just moments ago.

Mr. Adams, Ibelieve you responded by text that

said you would renew your earlier request with respect to

a l e s s e r i n c l u d e d , s o — t h i s i s g o n n a t o t a k e s o m e

d i s c u s s i o n , s o —

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

I — I c o u l d r e m a k e t h e a r g u m e n t i f

t h e c o u r t f e e l s i t w o u l d a s s i s t t h e c o u r t i n m a k i n g t h e

I f l * m j u s t d o i n g i t t o p r e s e r v e m y r e c o r d ,

t h e n I w o u l d j u s t r e f e r b a c k t o w h a t I ' d a r g u e d b e f o r e .

B u t i f t h e C o u r t h a s q u e s t i o n s t h a t t h e c o u r t f e e l s i t

w o u l d a s s i s t , I ' d b e h a p p y t o — t o g o t h r o u g h i t a g a i n

a n d e x p l a i n i n g w h y I t h i n k i t ' s t h e p r o p e r t h i n g w h e n y o u

l o o k a t t h e e l e m e n t s .

1 7 M R . A D A M S :

1 8

d e c i s i o n .1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

B u t i f t h e c o u r t r e m e m b e r s a n d2 4

u n d e r s t a n d s i t , t h e n i — y o u k n o w, w h a t e v e r t h e C o u r t2 5
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1 w o u l d w a n t .

2 Ido remember and Ido understand,
however, based on the question, Ibelieve that the state

has an opportunity to weigh in on this as well,

originally, the request was made.

T H E C O U R T:

3

4 S o i t —

I g u e s s , I b a s i c a l l y

sustained the —well, overruled your motion, if you want

to call it that, based on the state's prerogative to

5

6

7

8 charge under whichever statute they want to charge it.

what's your response at this point?

MS. GULLETT: The same argument for why no

lesse r i nc luded . And then , a t t h i s t ime , Judge , i t h ink

we would just respond that you have all —you have

eve ry th i ng you need t o come t o ave rd i c t .

THE court: o k a y .

MR. ADAMS: B u t , J u d g e , i n h e a r i n g w h a t t h e

Court said -- and maybe Ididn't pick up on it when the

S t a t e s a i d t h a t t h e fi r s t t i m e , i f t h e s t a t e s a i d i t ' s

the i r —actua l ly, Iam k ind of remember ing i t now. Maybe

I j u s t d i d n ' t a d d r e s s t h a t . I d o n ' t t h i n k i t i s t h e

S t a t e ' s p r e r o g a t i v e . I t ' s t h e i r p r e r o g a t i v e t o d e c i d e

which case to charge, okay, wh ich charge to charge, they

c a n d e c i d e t h a t , b u t i f i t ' s a l e g i t i m a t e , t r u e ,

l esse r - i nc luded o f fense , and ev idence has been in t roduced

where areasonab le ju ry cou ld conv ic t somebody on a

l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e , I d o n ' t t h i n k — a n d w e ' r e

9
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1 requesting it, Idon't think the state has the option —
has the ability to object over or has the veto right.

Just because they can charge whatever they want,
they can charge whatever they want, but it's amatter due

Once it's submitted to the jury and once we're
i n t o t h e t r i a l , i b e l i e v e t h a t w e ' r e e n t i t l e d t o a l l o f

these —any lesser-included offense, where there's been

evidence where areasonable jury could conclude,

why Iopened up my browser because Ithink there's case

law on that, which occurs to me the easiest way might be
to l ook f o r t ha t OUJ I and send t he l esse r - i nc l uded o f f ense

to the ju ry comments , imight find i t there .

But -- but anyway, but Ican find it on acomputer,

b u t I d o n ' t t h i n k — a n d I t h i n k i t ' s — i t c e r t a i n l y

highlights and strengthens the problem,

this point what we'd have to do is we'd have to bring them
b a c k i n a n d i n s t r u c t , b u t t h a t ' s a n o t h e r i s s u e .

2

3

4

5 p r o c e s s .

6

7

8 w h i c h i s

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 O f c o u r s e , a t

1 6

1 7

1 8 well , and that -- that was, again,

g o i n g t o b e p a r t o f m y d i s c u s s i o n i s t h a t i f t h a t

u l t imate ly is a l lowed, i f we ' re go ing to do a lesser

inc luded, then Ibel ieve we have to br ing a l l the jurors

b a c k i n , r e c r a f t a t l e a s t a s p e c i fi c i n s t r u c t i o n w i t h

r e s p e c t t o a l e s s e r i n c l u d e d , a n d t h e n , o f c o u r s e , w e

would have another verdict form, avar iety of th ings.

I t ' s g o i n g t o t a k e a s e c o n d .

T H E C O U R T :

1 9
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1 Would one of you look on your jury —if you have

your jury instructions down here, what jury instruction is

the elements of the crime that was charged? That will
help me find this one quicker.

MR. ADAMS: A r e y o u t a l k i n g —

MS. GULLETT: I didn't bring mine, Judge. I'm

2

3

4

5

6

7 s o r r y .

8 MR. ADAMS: The lesser inc luded —are you

a s k i n g f o r t h e l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e i n s t r u c t i o n ?

THE court: n o . w h a t ' s t h e — w h a t ' s t h e

instruction number for the one that was actually —that

we sent back to the jury? Idon't have my copy here

because Isent i t back wi th the jury.

MR. ADAMS: o h , I ' v e g o t t h a t . I t ' s a l i t t l e

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

marked up.1 5

1 6 THE COURT: T h a t ' s a l l r i g h t . I j u s t n e e d t h e

n u m b e r o f f o f i t .1 7

1 8 MR. ADAMS: Y e a h , i t ' s —

THE COURT: Compu te r c r imes .

MR. ADAMS: B u t t h e n w e d o n ' t h a v e t h e s e c o n d —

1 9

2 0

well, second one is going to be —

COURT REPORTER: T h e s e c o n d o n e w h a t ?

2 1

2 2

2 3 Wel l , you know, the computers

S o i t ' s g o i n g t o b e — i s i t

M R . A D A M S :

r e f e r e n c e s , t h e o t h e r o n e .

1 1 7 2 , o r —

2 4

2 5
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1 W e l l , l e t ' s d o t h i s ,

that we need to have this discussion on the record,

you believe —when we come to aresolution, if we kind of

find everything we're looking for, we'll go back on the
r e c o r d i f w e n e e d t o .

T H E C O U R T: I d o n ' t k n o w

2 D o

3

4

5

6 MS. gullett: w e c a n , J u d g e , b u t i t h i n k —

here's where the state is going to have aconcern, if i

may just kind of sum it up. So whenever you look at the

computer crimes OUJI —

THE COURT: R i g h t .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 —and the one we use , i t does no t

include any of the elements that are —well , okay.

The fourth l ine would require you to specify the

e l e m e n t s o f a n o t h e r s t a t u t e t h a t h e h a s v i o l a t e d , w h i c h

w o u l d b e t h e s t a l k i n g .

M S . G U L L E T T :

1 2

' 1 3

1 4

1 5 So a re we say ing tha t th i s i s a

l e s s e r i n c l u d e d o f t h e s e t w o h y b r i d s t a t u t e s o r i s i t a1 6

lesser inc luded o f the computer Cr imes Ac t a lone?

THE COURT: W e l l , I t h i n k i t ' s g o i n g t o h a v e t o

b e a l e s s e r i n c l u d e d o f t h e c r i m e c h a r g e d .

MS. gullett: R i g h t , w h i c h —

THE court: R i g h t .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

I t i s — h e i s c h a r g e d u n d e r t h e2 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

computer c r imes Act .2 3

THE COURT: R i g h t .2 4

In the body i t says he has2 5 M S . G U L L E T T :
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1 violated the Computer Crimes Act by stalking.
THE COURT: Y e s .

MS. GULLETT: SO he is not charged with

2

3

s t a l k i n g .4

5 THE COURT: Y e s .

6 So the elements in the proposed

misdemeanor, while they're not written out, would be

willfully, maliciously, whatever, use acomputer to annoy,
a b u s e , o r t h r e a t e n .

M S . G U L L E T T :

7

8

9 The elements of annoy, abuse, or

threaten would have to come from stalking, of which he is1 0

not charged,

w i t h s t a l k i n g .

1 1 It may be in there, but he is not charged
1 2

1 3 THE COURT: S o t h e — w h a t l — w h a t I b e l i e v e I

hear the State saying is that what —there is no

l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d c h a r g e t o — o r n o l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d c r i m e

to the c r ime charged .

MS. GULLETT: C o r r e c t . I d o n ' t b e l i e v e y o u c a n

have alesser included Computer crimes Act because you

wou ld be hav ing t o t a l k abou t t he behav io r t ha t l eads t o

violat ing another state statute that he's not charged
w i t h .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 THE COURT: O k a y .

2 3 I d i d n ' t — h e ' s n o t c h a r g e d w i t h

s t a l k i n g ; t h e r e f o r e , t h e r e ' s n o l e s s e r i n c l u d e d ,

w a s c h a r g e d w i t h s t a l k i n g , y o u c o u l d m a y b e — a n d i t ' s a

M S . G U L L E T T :

2 4 I f h e

2 5
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1 fe lony now. You could maybe get this computer crimes Act

misdemeanor in by using acomputer to do these things
under the felony-now umbrella of stalking.

2

3

4 THE COURT: Mr. Adams, you're standing up, so

I'm assuming you have something to say.

MR. ADAMS: Y e s . I d o n ' t b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a n

a c c u r a t e i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , i t ' s a h y p e r t e c h n i c a l

in te rpre ta t ion and i t ' s miss ing the fo res t fo r the t rees .

Okay?

5

6

7

8

9

He's charged with using acomputer to do —to do

the s ta l k i ng . Okay? i t i sn ' t l i ke you have ce r ta i n

g r o u p s o f c r i m e s , t h e s e o v e r h e r e — w e l l , t h e s e a l l c o u l d

b e l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e s . Yo u j u s t h a v e t o a p p l y i t .

The communication with acomputer for the purpose of using

a c c e s s t o w i l l f u l l y , m a l i c i o u s l y, r e p e a t e d l y h a r a s s

another person,

when you look at what they 've charged in the

m i s d e m e a n o r , t h e t i t l e — I d o n ' t k n o w i f i t w a s t i t l e d ,

but i f you look at what they charged in the misdemeanor —

a n d i t ' s p a r a g r a p h , I t h i n k , 8 - A o f w h a t e v e r t h a t s t a t u t e

i s , i t ' s t h e r e .

You ' re annoy ing aperson by send ing them an e -ma i l ,

i t ' s t h e r e . T h a t ' s a l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e . A n d t h e

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

d i f f e r e n c e b e t w e e n t h e t w o i s w h e n y o u t a k e o f f t h e fi f t h ,

t h e s i x t h , a n d t h e s e v e n t h e l e m e n t s .

2 4

S o w o u l d i t b e2 5
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1 possible for the jury to look at this and say, You know
what, Idon't think she was annoyed. Idon't think she

was frightened, intimidated, threatened, or harassed, i

don ' t th ink she ac tua l l y was , Idon ' t th ink a reasonab le

person was, but Ido think that maybe he was sending it
just to annoy her. And these are the levels that the

legislature has done. The fact that they want to charge

the Computer Crimes Act is another issue because,

basical ly, what i t does is i t just hypes i t up from what

would be athree-year felony under the stalking and i t

a l lows them to charge i t as afive-year fe lony, is what

they ' re doing. I t 's a lmost l ike an enhancement , okay?

B u t i t ' s s t i l l a l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e . A n d i t ' s

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

a l r e a d y w r i t t e n i n t h e r e f r o m t h e c o m p u t e r — f r o m t h e —

i n t h e s t a t u t e t h a t t h e y c h a r g e d w i t h c o u n t 2 .

fac t tha t the Sta te sa id , We need to d ismiss Count 2 ,

wh i ch wasn ' t amo t i on Imade , bu t based upon the p rev ious

arguments, because i t merges is an admission by the State

B e c a u s e i f i t w a s n ' t

1 4

1 5 A n d t h e

1 6

1 7

1 8

t h a t i t ' s a l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e .1 9

a l e s s e r - i n c l u d e d o f f e n s e a n d i t w a s a s e p a r a t e e l e m e n t ,

i t w o u l d n ' t m e r g e .

2 0

2 1

w e l l , b u t a m I — a m I c o r r e c t ,

MS. Gul le t t , that you d ismissed the second count because

i t was one spec ific da te ou t o f numerous da tes tha t you

a l l e g e d i n t h e fi r s t c o u n t ?

2 2 T H E C O U R T :

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 I d i s m i s s e d t h e s e c o n d c o u n t f o r

the same specific reason that Idismissed counts that

originally having to do with both of the city people.
That was, like, at one point, ithink two and three,
because Ithink Count 2became —was count 4.

dealt with with Mr. Newman where we read the Barnard --

the Barnard vState case where it specifically talks about

if the relationship between the charges arose from a

single act such as the Barnard case, the sexual

communication that was believed to be to achild through a

computer, then you can't charge that person with both

using the computer to attempt to, you know, entice the

child away and charge that person with enticing achild

a w a y .

M S . G U L L E T T :

2 w e r e

3

4

5 W h i c h w e

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

So that's why Isaid they merge.

B a r n a r d c a s e — o r B e r — y e a h , B a r n a r d c a s e , i t ' s u n d e r

the same —the relationship between the charges arise

S o t h i s — w h i l e t h i s i s n o t a s i n g l e

a c t , i t i s a n a c t — a c t s o v e r t i m e t h a t f a l l u n d e r t h e

s t a l k i n g u m b r e l l a ,

happened in October o f 2020, ins tead o f October 2021, tha t

was in the middle of everything happening.

A n d , J u d g e , j u s t t o r e s p o n d t o t h a t .

T h e f a c t t h a t t h e s t a t e c o n c e d e s t h a t t h e s a m e a c t — s a m e

b e h a v i o r t h a t t h e y ' r e a l l e g i n g t o b e c r i m i n a l , i f

1 5 B e c a u s e u n d e r t h e

1 6

1 7

f r o m t h e s a m e a c t .1 8

1 9

2 0 A n d s o w h e n I r e a l i z e d t h a t i t

2 1

2 2

2 3 M R . A D A M S :

2 4

2 5
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believed, could serve as abasis for the conviction of a

felony and amisdemeanor is in and of itself an admission

that one must necessari ly be alesser- included offense.

I d i d n ' t t a k e t h a t f r o m w h a t s h e

Ididn't interpret that the same way.

Ms. Gullett, it looks like you have something?

That is not what I'm saying,

That is not at al l what Iam saying,

that the felony itself is —every single act put together

over the amount of time that the State of Oklahoma put in

our Information from Dune 1st of 2020, until September 6th

o f 2 0 2 2 , t h e r e w e r e a m u l t i t u d e o f a c t s t h a t a l l c o m e

under felony -- or all come under the Computer Crimes Act

b y u s i n g a c o m p u t e r t o s t a l k t h e B l a n c h a r d s .

T h e o n l y l e s s e r i n c l u d e d t h a t m a y b e I c o u l d s e e —

a n d I d o n ' t t h i n k t h i s i s r i g h t — w o u l d b e m a y b e a

Because i f you p re tend l i ke t he

c o m p u t e r d i d n ' t e x i s t , b u t t h a t ' s n o t p o s s i b l e i n t h i s

c a s e b e c a u s e h e ' s n e v e r b e e n t o O k l a h o m a a n d h e ' s n e v e r

1

2

3

4 T H E C O U R T:

5 s a i d .

6

7 M S . G U L L E T T :

Dudge.8 I a m s a y i n g

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

misdemeanor s ta lk ing .1 7

1 8

1 9

b e e n t o B a r t l e s v i l l e — s o t h a t ' d b e l i k e —2 0

THE COURT: R i g h t .2 1

— p r e t e n d i n g l i k e a m a j o r e l e m e n t

Because, o therw ise , we have a l l these

e l e m e n t s h e r e , a n d i t ' s u p t o t h e j u r y t o d e c i d e i f

whe the r o r no t a reasonab le pe rson wou ld be a f ra id o r no t .

2 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

d i d n ' t e x i s t .2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 THE COURT: O k a y . So, again, i*m going to deny

Idon't believe that what you're

asking for Is, In fact, alesser Included of this specific
I t 's ad i f ferent cr ime a l together.

2 y o u r r e q u e s t , M r . A d a m s .

3

c r i m e .4

5 But the next question Is: H o w d o w e a d d r e s s t h i s

question back to the jury, is alesser-charge possible? I

think the easy answer Is no, without going any further.

MR. ADAMS: NO, you have a l l the law and the

f a c t s n e c e s s a r y t o m a k e a d e c i s i o n I n t h i s m a t t e r . Yo u

know, the standard response.

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 M S . G U L L E T T : O r “

I f t h e C o u r t w a n t s t o s o u n d n i c e r1 2 M R . A D A M S :

t h a n t h e s t a n d a r d r e s p o n s e , b e c a u s e I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e

standard response Is very nice. I t 's just the one that

I ' v e h e a r d j u d g e s g i v e —

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 THE COURT: Y e s .

MR. ADAMS: —you know, fo r twen ty -someth ing

y e a r s . B u t , y e a h . I m e a n , a s l o n g a s — a s I t ' s c l e a r

that the answer Is no, and you must decide on the facts

necessary and —

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

THE COURT: How about If we put: N o . Y o u m u s t2 1

dec ide based upon t he I n f o rma t i on p resen ted a t t r i a l o r

ev i dence p resen ted a t t r i a l , maybe?

2 2

2 3

We l l , t h e y ' r e n o t a s k i n g a b o u t

B u t , r e g a r d l e s s .

2 4 M R . A D A M S :

ev i dence , t hey ' r e ask i ng abou t cha rges .2 5
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1 i t * s m i n o r . I t d o e s n ' t m a t t e r .

2 My inclination is just to put no.
I t h i n k n o i s fi n e .

Is that going to sat is fy you,

T H E C O U R T:

3 M S . G U L L E T T :

4 T H E C O U R T:

5 M r . A d a m s ?

6 I ' m s o r r y ?

I f I j u s t w r i t e t h e a n s w e r n o —

Ye a h , I ' m n o t —

—does tha t sa t is fy you?

Y e a h .

M R . A D A M S :

7 T H E c o u r t :

8 M R . A D A M S :

9 T H E c o u r t :

1 0 M R . A D A M S :

1 1 Okay. w e ' l l s e n d t h i s b a c k i n t oT H E C O U R T:

t h e j u r y .1 2

( T h e j u r y q u e s t i o n i s r e t u r n e d a n d d e l i b e r a t i o n s

continued. Thereafter, proceedings resumed as

1 3

1 4

f o l l o w s : )1 5

1 6 S o w e a r e n o w b a c k o n t h e r e c o r d .T H E C O U R T :

we have ano ther ques t ion /comment f rom the ju ry. I t came

o u t a t 6 : 2 8 . I t s a y s , w e a r e l o c k e d a t 11 t o 1 . T h e o n e

i s q u i t e fi r m . D o w e c o n t i n u e d e l i b e r a t i n g ? I f s o , h o w

long?

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

And p r i o r t o go ing on the reco rd , t he a t to rneys and

Ihad some conve rsa t i on abou t t he app rop r i a te response ,

and we came up wi th, and correct me i f I 'm wrong, but to

t he ques t i on "Do we con t i nue de l i be ra t i ng .

P l e a s e c o n t i n u e t o d e l i b e r a t e .

2 1

2 2

2 3

I I2 4 I w r o t e .

I I I I A n d t o t h e q u e s t i o n , " I f2 5
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1 so, how long?

u p t o y o u .

● t I I

Take as long or short as you want. I t ' s

2 I I

3 Do you ag ree , M r. Adams?

MR. ADAMS: I — I a g r e e .

THE COURT: A n d , M S . G u l l e t t ?

MS. gullett: Y e s , J u d g e .

THE COURT: okay. Thank you .

That will conclude the record for this question.
( T h e j u r y q u e s t i o n i s r e t u r n e d a n d d e l i b e r a t i o n s

continued. Thereafter, proceedings resumed as

f o l l o w s : )

THE COURT: okay. We are now back on the record

i n S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a v e r s u s M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n . W e h a v e

received anote from the jury that says they have reached

a v e r d i c t .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

Anything we need to do before the jurors are1 6

b rough t i n?1 7

1 8 MR. ADAMS: N O .

1 9 MS. GULLETT: N O .

2 0 THE COURT: M a d a m B a i l i f f , w o u l d y o u p l e a s e

di rect the jurors to thei r p lace in the jury box.

M r . F e t t e r h o f f , i t l o o k s l i k e y o u a r e t h e

f o r e p e r s o n . A m I c o r r e c t ?

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 JUROR FETTERHOFF: Y e s .

THE COURT: O k a y. H a s t h e j u r y r e a c h e d a2 5
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1 v e r d i c t i n t h i s c a s e ?

2 JUROR FETTERHOFF: Ye s , w e h a v e .

THE COURT: o k a y , i s i t u n a n i m o u s ?

JUROR FETTERHOFF: Y e s , i t i s .

THE COURT: Okay, would you please hand all the

verdict forms, instructions, exhibits, et cetera,

e v e r y t h i n g t h a t y o u h a v e t o t h e b a i l i f f .

Madam Clerk, would you please read the verdict.

THE CLERK: In the Dist r ic t Court of Washington

county, state of Oklahoma, the State of Oklahoma,

plaint i ff , versus Michael Eric Nelson, defendant. Case

Number CF-2021-304. Verdict: W e , t h e j u r y, i m p a n e l l e d

and sworn in the above-entitled cause, do upon our oaths

find as follows: C o u n t 1 , v i o l a t i o n o f O k l a h o m a s t a t u t e

via computer, the defendant is not gui l ty.

THE COURT: Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.

Does either party wish me to poll the jury?

MR. ADAMS: N o t o n b e h a l f o f M r . N e l s o n .

MS. GULLETT: N O , J u d g e . T h a n k y o u .

(This concludes the requested proceedings.)
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1 C E R T I F I C A T E

2

3 S TAT E O F O K L A H O M A )

4 ) s s .

5 C O U N T Y O F T U L S A )

6

7 I , D e e D e e Ta n n e r , a c e r t i fi e d S h o r t h a n d

Reporter in and for the State of Oklahoma, do hereby

certify that the foregoing transcript in the above-styled

case is atrue, correct, and complete transcript of my

shorthand notes of the proceedings in said cause.

Dated this 18th day of May, 2023.
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